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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this
report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) record a total revenue of
approximately HK$20,258,000, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$472,000 or 2.3% as compared with that of approximately

HK$20,730,000 in 2020.

The reduction in the Group’s revenue was attributed by the decrease in
segment revenue from the game publishing, development of mobile game
and related intellectual property and platform, mobile application and data
solutions and provision of IT related solutions (the “Mobile Games and
Applications Business”) by approximately HK$282,000, which recorded
a segment revenue of approximately HK$45,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 as compared with that of approximately HK$327,000
in 2020. The mobile games currently owned by the Group were developed
and launched several years ago. While new mobile games are still under
development, the existing mobile games are approaching the end of their
life-cycles and therefore generated only a low level of segment revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Segment revenue from the developing and marketing of the patented server-
based technology and the provision of communications software platform,
software related services and the custom-made software development
services (the “Software Platform Business”) recorded a slight decrease
of approximately HK$190,000 to approximately HK$20,213,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared with that of approximately
HK$20,403,000 in 2020.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$11,889,000 which represented a slight
increment by 1.6% as compared with that of approximately HK$11,699,000
in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Gross Profit

As a result of the aforementioned decrease in the total revenue and increase
in cost of sales, gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 decreased by approximately 7.3% to approximately HK$8,369,000
(2020: approximately HK$9,031,000).

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$28,315,000
(2020: approximately HK$56,329,000), which comprised administrative
expenses, research and development expenses and selling and distribution
expenses. The significant decrease in overall expenses was mainly due to the
significant decrease in impairment losses on trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$10,422,000, staff cost of approximately HK$2,572,000
and amortization and depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of HK$14,768,000 during the year.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, finance costs were approximately
HK$1,456,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,828,000), which comprised of
interest on interest-bearing borrowings and interest on lease liabilities.

Discontinued operation
Money lending business was discontinued during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 from discontinued operation was
approximately HK$77,009,000 compared with approximately HK$8,445,000
in 2020. The significant increase in loss of approximately HK$68,564,000
was mainly due to the decrease in revenue of approximately HK$9,917,000
and the increase in impairment losses on loans and interest receivables of
approximately HK$60,555,000 during the year.

Loss for the year

The consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$83,337,000,
representing an increase of approximately 16.4% as compared with that
of approximately HK$71,611,000 in 2020. The net loss for the year was
mainly attributable to the impairment losses on loans and interest receivables
provided for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group continued to focus on two
principal businesses, they are (i) Software Platform Business and (ii) Mobile
Games and Applications Business.

The Group decided in September 2021 to cease to operate the Money
Lending Business segment upon the expiry of the money lending license on
2 June 2021.

Software Platform Business

The customers of the Group’s software platform business ranged from non-
government organisation to government departments of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Software Platform Business had performed
satisfactorily and managed to achieve a slight decrease of approximately
0.9% in segment revenue for the year and accounted for approximately
99.8% (2020: approximately 98.4%) of the Group's total revenue for the
year. As the market remains to be highly competitive and fast-changing, the
Group will continue to allocate adequate resources to meet the evolving
industry standards in satisfying customers’ demand.

Mobile Games and Applications Business

In response to the fast-changing market conditions, the Board is continuously
reviewing the Group's strategy to optimise its revenue and profit generated
from the Mobile Games and Applications Business. Given the improvement
of the pandemic recently, the mobile game industry is expecting a large
pullback in the number of daily active users and the overall average online
time. The deterioration is mainly due to the expected decline in lockdown
bloom phenomenon in mobile game industry in 2021 as compared to that in
2020 and, consequently, the demand for new mobile games is significantly
reduced. At the same time, along with increasing market participation in
the industry, it is observed that while the cost per paying user acquisition
has shown an increasing trend for the first-half of 2021 as compared to that
of 2020, the retention rate of gamer has remained gloom. In addition, the
trend of tightening privacy protection policy has limited the Group's user
targeting ability which, in turn, inevitably increases the advertising budget for
publish mobile games. Under such circumstance, the profitability of in-house
game development and publishing will not be as promising as previous years
and so, the Group decided to act caution and maintain a more conservative
business and sales strategy for mobile games owned and under development
by the Group to cope with the upheaval market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Money Lending Business

Due to unprecedented challenges and economic downturn caused by the
social movement in second half 2019 and the outbreak of COVID-19 novel
coronavirus in 2020, the Group has maintained regular communication with
the debtors to closely monitor their financial status. The Group has taken
some measures to support the debtors of the Group and to alleviate their
cash-flow pressure, such as extension of principal repayment, so as to help
them to ride through these difficult times. The Group expects that Hong
Kong's economy will remain challenging in the year 2021. Along with the
recovery in local economy and adaptation to post COVID-19 environment, as
well as the change in directorship of the Company in June 2021, the Group
decided in September 2021 to cease operating the Money Lending Business
segment upon the expiry of the money lending license on 2 June 2021.
The operation results of the Money Lending Business has been restated as
discontinued operation in the financial statements.

In the past, the Money Lending Business was carried out a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company under money lenders license granted by the
licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group had revised and updated its money lending policy and manuals of
the Group (the “Manuals”) for both sizeable loan and small and unsecured
personal loan to cope with the changing regulatory requirements from time
to time, including the procedures in relation to the implementation of Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing System. The Group
has engaged an external independent consultant (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to conduct the annual review on the effectiveness of the
internal control system, including the revenue cycle for the Money Lending
Business. The Internal Control Consultant has reviewed the Manuals and has
not identified any defects.

The Group has adopted and followed a series of strict credit assessment
procedure to regulate the Money Lending Business operation to ensure a
comprehensive risk management so as to safeguard the Group’s and, most
importantly, the Shareholders’ interest.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

All loans being granted should be approved, on a case-by-case basis, by the
majority of the loan approval committee (the “Committee”) of the Group,
where the members of the Committee included the Directors who were
designated to handle and/or monitor the Money Lending Business and
procedure of the Group. The Committee, upon receiving loan application,
should perform a set of standardised know-your-customer procedures and
due diligence process on, in particular, the applicant’'s repayment ability,
credit history, prior litigation and credit worthiness. During the process, the
Committee should obtain and verify the income proof/cash flow proof of the
applicant, and if securities/collateral involved, the asset proof.

As at 30 June 2021, there were a total of 127 outstanding loans. All debtors,
and its ultimate beneficial owner (if applicable), of the outstanding loans are
independent third parties (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Group.
The aggregate principal amount of outstanding loans are approximately
HK$94,500,000, out of which approximately of HK$52,300,000 are secured
loan (details referred to Note 16). The largest outstanding loan has an
amount of approximately HK$24,873,000 while the five largest loans have an
amount in aggregate of HK$52,316,000, representing approximately 26.3%
and 55.4%, respectively, of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding
loans. The majority of outstanding loans were granted during the year of
2018 and 2019. The interest rate of the outstanding loan are ranged 10.0%
t0 58.9%.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“ECL") attributing to loans and interest receivable.
When estimating the ECL on loan and interest receivable, the Group has
considered the probability of default upon initial recognition of an asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis by comparing the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
The Group has also taken into account forwarding-looking information
including actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

The Board classified the loan and interest receivables as exposures where
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit-impaired. The basis for recognition of ECL provision
was lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the
financial asset). The Board is of the view that as the above-mentioned
the methodology and the basis applied were common and widely used in
the market and such approach in measuring the ECL on loan and interest
receivable is consistent with practice adopted by Group since financial year
ended 31 December 2020, the Board considered such methodology and the
basis applied are fair and reasonable.

For the monitoring and debt collection procedures, according to the Manuals,
it stated clearly the action to be taken in case of any default in repayment
by the borrowers, including to institute legal proceedings. The existing
Board is now re-examining the recoverability of each outstanding loans, and
formulating appropriate measures to minimise the impairment loss, which
include but not limited (i) concluding settlement plans with the debtors; (ii)
engaging debt collector; and (iii) taking legal action against the debtors with
overdue amounts. The Group shall take all necessary measures to recover
such outstanding amounts to protect the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders.

OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic accelerated the growth of remote work. The
freedom and ability to operate from anywhere will be permanent in the
future. Software development is unpredictable, volatile and very competitive.
Emerging trends indicate that the future of software development will
undergo significant change. The wide array of new technologies and
innovations has huge implications for the software development space.

In an increasingly connected world, technology has the potential to
revolutionize and reinvent how we do business. As we look forward and
prepare for a post-pandemic future, we're optimistic the latest tech trends
can help address some of our most pressing business challenges and build a
more equitable, resilient society.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group's main business operations and investments are in Hong Kong.
At 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$3,791,000 (2020: approximately HK$3,415,000). Most of
the cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement and will take appropriate
activities to reduce the exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2021, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$35,678,000 (2020: approximately HK$159,519,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$8,796,000 (2020: approximately
HK$44,688,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total liabilities
over total assets, was approximately 24.7% (2020: approximately 28.0%)
and the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 1.68 (2020: approximately 2.24). The Directors will continue
to take measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing position of the
Group.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant Investment
On 5 July 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement with a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability whose ultimate beneficial owner is a
third party independent of and not connected with the Company and its
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), in relation to the
proposed disposal of a property of the Group (the “Proposed Disposal”) at
the total consideration of HK$38.0 million. Details of the Proposed Disposal
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 July 2021. The
Proposed Disposal completed on 20 October 2021.

Except for the above, the Group did not have any other material acquisition,
disposal and significant investment during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of
which 1,272,640,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

BEHE

NS —F+B=+—H A EREEEYN
735,678,000/ T (ZZ "= : 159,519,000
BT o AR aERI478,796,0008 7T (CEZE
F 1 #944,688,000787T)  NEE BEHLE (%
BEERUREESSE) N78247% (T2
IF 1 4928.0%) BomEN LI (Hmsh & E R LUK ED
BB 948168 (R ZF 1 £92.24) &
EREERNZIBEERME— P NS AER S
nEEeREERT

BEAYEFE HEFEREARE
ATET—FTBAER ARRAZ—REENB
AEE—RPEBEMAILZBRAT HREL
EREBAABUIN AR REREAL (BE&
RGEMLEMRA) BB ERE 25 =7 5]
VREES RS BRERHEANER—EYE

(MEFEHEY) » 4B E738,000,0007 7T © 25
HENEBENAARHPAZSE Z—Ft A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmA RO

Use of Proceeds

As stated in the announcements dated 6 April 2018 and 25 April 2018
in relation to, among other things, placing of new shares under general
mandate (the “Placing”), the Board originally intended to use the net
proceeds of approximately HK$32,337,000 (“Net Proceeds”) from the
Placing as to (i) HK$10,000,000 for the development of the Money Lending
Business; (i) HK$5,000,000 for the development of the Mobile Games
and Applications Business; (iii) HK$8,000,000 for identifying the potential
investment in the green projects; and (iv) the remaining balance as general
working capital purposes.

As the Company had reassessed its strategy on concentration to its core
businesses after the recent change of management, the Board has resolved
to reallocate the use of the entire unutilised Net Proceeds in an amount
of approximately HK$1,458,000, which were originally allocated for the
identifying the potential investment in the green projects, to supplement the
general working capital of the Group (the “Reallocation”).

The utilisation of the Net Proceeds as of 31 December 2021 are set out as

Fr g7k BB 5%

WORZE— N \FOBANBRZZE—N\FNA
“—+HBAEM EPEE RE—REELEH
fp (MeEEIE) 2 AS EEGRERA
E =B TS RIEF584932,337,00078 7T (TPR12
HIEHEE)) BN EVELLT B3R 1) 10,000,000
TCREMIEZEFEE (i) 5,000,000 7T RIEF
10 155 e FE FR 3£ 7535 & (i) 8,000,000 70 AR 1
MBEGEIEEZBERSE ; RvVERERF—RE
BEERE-

HRARBEHEEBEHREEMIGHHER
B EEHEMOES EFTRBENRKEDK
MBFYeseEE 2 BERERRN B
IS IEFEEA91,458,0008 T2 AN E R ER
M—REEES (EHDE))

BHE_Z_—F+__A=+—HFERIEZEHE

follows: HEREROT
Utilised Unutilised Revised Utilised
Amount Amount Unutilised Amount
Original as of as of Amount as of
Intended 31 December 31 December after 31 December
Amount 2020 2020  Reallocation 2021
BE #Hit #=E
2020 20205 20215
[R5t E 128318 12A318  EHFEEMN 12A31H
Intended Use of Net Proceeds FREMBREZRERR FREE BERAEE KEAEE AEAEE BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET FTET TET
Development of the Money Lending Business BEENEERER 10,000 10,000 - - -
Development of the Mobile Games and BEFRBEE&
Applications Business EREBER 5,000 5,000 = = =
Identifying the potential investment BrEmeReEges
in the Green Projects BERE 8,000 6,542 1,458 = =
General working capital —REEES 9,337 9,337 - 1,458 1,458
32,337 30,879 1,458 1,458 1,458
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE RSO

Funding and Treasury Policies BT REFHE
The Group consistently adopts a conservative treasury policy during its REBEEREBEF -HRERTZEBEE
development and generally finances its operations and business development —RURHEEZERRRER,HEHERE

with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt financing activities ENAHKERERRRREES  NWERER
in order to maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group also strives to ZRBBETR R ANEETHREEREL 2
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluation of BARETRHEE GG BUVREMMAEZE
the financial conditions of its clients of Money Lending Business. To manage BERE -ABEERBETRR ESgFUBEE
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the financial position of the Group REBZHBERT UBERAEREE -8ER
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and EIEZ R ECEEENMmEERR 2 EE

commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time. FEo

Foreign Exchange Exposure SMEE R
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange E B A B AR ] 5 RSN B o
exposure.

Material Risk Factors EAEEREE

Details of the Group's financial risk and analysis are set out in note 26 to the KEBZMBRERDTFEHRNGEHBR
consolidated financial statements. KMIsF260

Contingent Liabilities SpAAE R

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 N2 —F+ZA=+—H ~xEELEEM
December 2021. BEAHAREGE

Employees and Remuneration Policies 1ES R # M

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 53 employees (2020: 56 NZEZ—F+ZA=+—H TEBTEEEX

employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The staff costs (including directors’ FEEMASSRET (CET_TF 564 E) o &

remuneration) were approximately HK$16,791,000 for the year ended 31 FTET—F+"HA=Z+—HIEEE - BIMRAK

December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$14,724,000). (BIEEZND) 49416,791,0008 T (CE-Z
F 1 #914,724,0007T) ©

The Group's remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined by RERZ FHMBERKEREII B2 EMG R
reference to market terms, company performance, individual qualifications RARBREANBERERKRRET  WTEIEER
and performance, and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the BREZMESEEE 2 EEEKR

respective jurisdiction where the employees are employed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELRERS

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of

maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") as contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (effective on 1 January 2019) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 except the CG Code provisions A.2.1 to
A.2.9, A.6.7, E.1.2 and F.1.3 with considered reasons explained below.

Under the CG Code section A.2, there should be a clear division of the
management of the board and the day-to-day management of business.

The Company does not have the Chairman (“Chairman”) during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Under the CG Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
should attend general meetings.

One of the INEDs did not attend the AGM due to other important
engagements at the relevant time.

Under the CG Code provision E. 1.2, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. Since the Company does not have the Chairman
during the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Chow Yik, the then executive
Director, has been elected by other Directors present to act as the chairman
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2021 in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (“ Articles”).

Under the CG Code provision F.1.3, the company secretary should report to
the board chairman and/or the chief executive.

14 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELRERS

Since the Company does not have the Chairman during the year ended 31
December 2021 and the new chief executive officer (the “CEOQ”) has not
been appointed following the resignation of Mr. Chan Kwun Chung as the
CEO on 1 April 2020, the company secretary of the Company reported to the
executive Directors since 1 April 2020.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company, overseeing
as well as the supervision of its business, approval of strategic plans and
monitoring the Company’s performance. The Board delegates the day-to-
day operations to the executive Directors and management, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors, of which two
are executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Man Lai and Mr. Choi Pun Lap,
and three are independent non-executive Directors (the “INED’s”), namely
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria, Mr. Fu Yan Ming and Mr. Tai Man Tai. There is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the
Directors. The Directors’ biographical information is set out in pages 32 to 36
under the section headed “Biographies of Directors”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging
their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company and that the
current board size is adequate for its present operations. Each Director keeps
abreast of his responsibility as the Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals with
active participation of a majority of Directors, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. There were 9 Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were set out as follows:

EEEEE

PEBATRTAMEXANRE SEER/DE
TR EHEREgE 7:%@%%%%17—% y
Eﬂk%’v%z%%-ﬁ%turmdﬂﬁﬂﬂ% pEE Wl

Izt

EFEEHEEMETERTEARERETR
AMEH EmAERBRERUKEERMT
KE-BET_—F+R=1+—HLFERN
HETNREFEEZH-

BrEEHFERE T - —F+_A=+—H
HFERTZEFFERERAIMT

Attendance/eligible to attend

HERY, AERHERY
Board meeting General meeting
EEEEE REXE

Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Chow Yik’ 4/4 VAl
B!
Mr. Chung Man Lai? 8/8 2/2
B B S A2
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa? 2/2 N/A REF
SREREESL LS
Mr. Yao Tong* 2/2 0/1
wkim oA
Mr. Choi Pun Lap® 5/5 171
N
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun® 5/5 072
R BT
Dr. Lee G. Lam’ N/A 1 N/A REF
MRBIEL
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 6/6 2/2
MimE Lt
Mr. Fu Yan Ming® 4/4 11
RrBAASEAES
Mr. Tai Man Tai® 171 N/A 38 B
B X FLES
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Notes:

Mr. Chow Yik resigned as an executive Director and member of nomination committee
effective on 1 June 2021.

Mr. Chung Man Lai was appointed as the compliance officer effective on 27 May
2021. He subsequently ceased to be the compliance officer effective on 1 June 2021.
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa resigned as an executive Director effective on 14 April 2021.

Mr. Yao Tong retired as an executive Director and ceased as member of remuneration
committee and compliance officer effective on 27 May 2021.

Mr. Choi Pun Lap has been appointed as an executive Director, member of nomination
committee and compliance officer effective on 1 June 2021.

Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as an INED, member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee effective on 1 October 2021.

Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an INED and member of audit committee effective on 1
March 2021.

Mr. Fu Yan Ming has been appointed as an INED, member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee effective on 31 May 2021.

Mr. Tai Man Tai has been appointed as an INED, member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee effective on 1
October 2021.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its

effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking into

account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda

while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

On 1 October 2018, Mr. Chan Kwun Chung has been appointed as the CEO.
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Following the resignation of Mr. Chan Wai Kit and Mr. Chan Kwun Chung as
the deputy chairman and CEO of the Company on 1 November 2018 and 1
April 2020 respectively, the Company does not have Chairman and CEO for
the time being. However, the Board is of the view that the balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced individuals who would from time to time discuss issues affecting
operations of the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will, at the
time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the Chairman and
CEO respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive
directors should, among others, attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There is satisfactory
attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general
meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 except that one
INED did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
May 2021 and the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
13 September 2021 due to his other important engagements at the relevant
time.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had three
INEDs in which at least one of them has appropriate professional accounting
or related financial management expertise in compliance with rules 5.05(1)
and 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules

Following the resignation of Dr. Lee G. Lam as INED on 1 March 2021, the
Company has a total of six directors in which four are executive Directors and
two are INEDs. Hence, the number of INEDs of the Company has failed to
meet the minimum number required under rules 5.05(1) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company also no longer fulfils the requirement on the
minimum number of INEDs for the formation of audit committee stipulated
under rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has appointed an
additional INED on 31 May 2021 to fulfill the above requirements.
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The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the INEDs are independent in accordance
with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for setting
directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing the
risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently three committees,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the management. Nomination
Committee assists the Board by developing and formulating relevant
procedures in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs and making
recommendation to the Board on appointment of Directors. Each of the
Committees is established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Company'’s website and GEM website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board regarding the terms of remuneration package payable to Directors
and senior management and on the Company's policy and structure for
remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company and
its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the Group's affairs.
The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Tai Man Tai, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Fu Yan
Ming. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an INED, Mr. Tai Man Tai.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. One
meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2021. The attendance

of each member is set out as follows:

G EBERVET -RGH FHNE
E

—E+=A=+—AILEE

MBI RG-S HEZ HEERRIIMT :

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SEMHERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIIERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)’ 11
BBIE (FE)!
Mr. Tai Man Tai (Chairman)? N/A “~7E 3
BXTRIE (FE)?
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 1Al
MR+
Mr. Fu Yan Ming? N/A B F
AL
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Yao Tong* 7M1
e Ep e
Notes: o=
1. Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as an INED effective on 1 October 2021. 1. PENERERETBIIERNTES B2 —F1
A—B&E®K-
2. Mr. Tai Man Tai has been appointed as an INED effective on 1 October 2021. 2. BN R RZAABUIFNTES B2 - —
FE+B—B%EMe
3. Mr. Fu Yan Ming has been appointed as an INED effective on 31 May 2021. 3. RERAEEZEABUIFNTES B2 - —
FRA=+—HER-
4. Mr. Yao Tong retired as an executive Director effective on 27 May 2021. 4. B RERITES B —FRB -+t
B&EMe
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Summary of works

During the year 2021, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of all
the Directors, reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the proposed Directors in accordance with the
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing
the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least
annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company; identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board having due regard to
the Board Diversity Policy; assessing the independence of INEDs; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors; as well as to review the
Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination Policy (as defined below), as
appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Tai Man Tai, Ms. Lam Yuen Man
Maria and Mr. Choi Pun Lap. The Nomination Committee is chaired by an
INED, Mr. Tai Man Tai.
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The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. In
addition, the Nomination Committee also meets as it is required to consider
nomination related matters. One meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2021. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REEEGHEEGER VBT —REF I
RBPEEETNER Eﬁﬁﬁ%:wu%gﬁ%ﬁ
HEE RLUEZEENBE_ZT_—F+28
=+—HIEFEET— h@h%%ﬁ)iﬁztﬂfﬁf‘la
MESIINT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERS
AERHBERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIIERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)' 71
BXBRE (FFE)
Mr. Tai Man Tai (Chairman)? N/A iE A
BXT=IE (F/E)?
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 11
MBE L
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Chow Yik? 11
Ehbeey
Mr. Choi Pun Lap* N/A iEF
BRI A
Notes: =2
1. Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as an INED effective on 1 October 2021. 1. AXBEERIBUIFNTES B - —F+
B—B4%%%e
2. Mr. Tai Man Tai has been appointed as an INED effective on 1 October 2021. 2. XRALELIRBUIFENTES B2 " —
fEJrH B4EMe
3. Mr. Chow Yik resigned as an executive Director effective on 1 June 2021. 3. BREERENTES B-E_—FB—H%
Ao
4. Mr. Choi Pun Lap has been appointed as an executive Director effective on 1 June 4. BARUFRERBZERPITES B2 - —F<A
2021. —HEM-
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Summary of works

During the year 2021, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board in light of the Board Diversity Policy,
assessed the independence of INEDs, reviewed and made recommendation
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring Directors, reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy, and reviewed the
appointment of the nominated Directors and made recommendation to the
Board for approval in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s written
terms of reference.

Nomination Policy
The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy in February 2019 regarding the
nomination, appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the nomination

procedure of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship based on
his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity of the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria
that are appropriate for the business and corporate strategy of the Company.

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified candidates,
recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election of the retiring
director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring Director and
the level of participation and performance on the Board and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.
Recommendation are then made to shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy regularly or at

any time necessary.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September 2013. A
summary of this policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board's composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises two
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of services,
professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board Diversity
Policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, evaluating the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems, reviewing the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting matters and ensuring the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, monitoring
compliance with statutory and listing requirements and overseeing the
relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. At least one member has an appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements
during the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and senior
executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of the Audit
Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditor
and the management.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Tai Man Tai, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Fu Yan Ming. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Tai Man Tai.
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The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year.
Four meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

%*2%; SEEFRDE E'ﬁ(@%% 2T
T —F+-R=+—HLFERBETHER
@.:%O%E}ZEZ&F%E;R%Z@J?DT :

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SEMHERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)’ 3/3
RNBIE (FE)
Mr. Tai Man Tai (Chairman)? 11
BXHRLE (FFE)?
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 4/4
MR+
Mr. Fu Yan Ming? 2/2
RFRRBLE
Notes: B

1. Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as an INED effective on 1 October 2021.

2. Mr. Tai Man Tai has been appointed as an INED effective on 1 October 2021.

3. Mr. Fu Yan Ming has been appointed as an INED effective on 31 May 2021.

Summary of works

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed
the financial reporting matters including the quarterly, interim and annual
results, made recommendations to the Board on the terms of engagement
and re-appointment of the external auditor, and reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems, and its other
duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG Code
and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group's preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to review the
scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management and internal
control systems, internal audit matters and to review the financial and
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as
set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the policies of the
corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set out
in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the audit
fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit service
(including professional advice on taxation) for the year ended 31 December
2021 provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was HK$550,000 and Nil
respectively.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. Such
system is to safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It has been an important duty of the Board to conduct
a review of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
system of the Group annually or at any time necessary. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and training program and budget. The process use to review its
effectiveness includes identification, evaluation, management measures and

control and review.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of the overall effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group over financial, operational
and compliance issues, risk management process, information systems
security, scope and quality of the management’s monitoring of risks and the
effectiveness of financial reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.
The Board considered that the resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget were adequate. The Board concluded that
in general, the Group had set up a sound control environment and installed

necessary control mechanisms to monitor and correct non-compliance.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside Information in
respect of procedures and internal control for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to rule 17.10 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Directors are
continuously updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
directors will be arranged at the expenses of the Company where necessary.
For the year 2021, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials relevant to
director’s duties and responsibility. Their training records have been provided
to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Following the resignation of Ms. Yuen Wing Kwan as a joint company
secretary of the Company with effect from 2 March 2021, Ms. Leung Lai
Ming (“Ms. Leung”) remained in office and continued to act as the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Leung was a service provider and she fulfilled
the requirement under rule 5.14 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Chow Yik,
the ex-executive Director, was the primary contact person who Ms. Leung
contacted.

Ms. Leung resigned as the company secretary of the Company with effect
from 14 April 2021 and Mr. Lee Cheuk Man (“Mr. Lee”) has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 16 April 2021.

In accordance with rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, both Ms. Yuen and
Ms. Leung have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year under review.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry
of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’' AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance for the financial period
ended 25 April 2021 covering the liabilities of the Directors that may arise
out of the corporate activities. Due to an inadvertent error or negligence on
handling the renewal of the appropriate insurance, the Company has already
arranged appropriate insurance cover on 1 March 2022. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the related party transactions, if
any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice of
annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer questions
on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s activities is provided
in its annual report, interim report and quarterly reports which are sent to
shareholders and investors. The Company's announcements, press releases
and publications are published and are also available on GEM website and on
the Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was not any change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and GEM website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company (the "Extraordinary General
Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the secretary
for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary General Meeting to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by email
at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the Company’s
Hong Kong head office at Room A6-D, 12/F, Block A, Hong Kong
Industrial Centre, 489-491 Castle Peak Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquiries with the Board
directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at general meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time), the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an Extraordinary General Meeting according to the

procedures as set out above.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Man Lai (“Mr. Chung”), aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April 2020 and
has been re-designated as executive director with effect from September
2020.

Mr. Chung has over 21 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Prior
to joining the Board, he worked successively in a reputable international
accounting firm and served as the chief financial officer of CMIC Ocean
En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as TSC Group Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 206)) and IDT International Limited (stock code: 167)
respectively, the shares of both companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. He is currently a non-executive director of Greatwalle
Inc, (stock code: 8315), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, and an independent non-executive director of Century Group
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2113), the shares of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and Roma Group Limited
(stock code: 8072), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange respectively. He is also the chief financial officer, company secretary,
member of the risk management committee and authorised representative of
D&G Technology Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1301), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1998 and a master of Business Administration
degree with a major in international business from EU Business School in
2018. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. Choi Pun Lap (“Mr. Choi”), aged 44, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since June 2021. He is also a member of
the nomination committee.

Mr. Choi has extensive knowledge in corporate finance transactions in Hong
Kong. He is well experienced for working in mergers & acquisition, analysing
financial and market data, responsible for coordinating and supporting
integration planning for acquisitions, and taking deals through the full
process to successful completion. He is currently an executive director of
Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
the issued shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Sunway International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 58), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Also, he is a principal of Absolute Value Business & Asset Valuation Limited
which provides services of valuation, accounting and business solution
to different companies in different industries. In the past, Mr. Choi was a
financial controller of a company which is listed in GEM in 2019 and he was a
senior audit manager in the audit department of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited (“HLB") in Hong Kong. He has worked in HLB for more than ten
years from February 2007 to December 2017.

Mr. Choi is a valuation practitioner of International Association of Certified
Valuation Specialists since 2019. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of Certified Practising Accountants
Australia and a member of Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr.
Choi graduated from Open University of Hong Kong with a Master of Law
(Chinese Business Law) in Hong Kong in 2017. He obtained a Bachelor of
Business (Accounting) from Central Queensland University in Australia in
2003 and further studied Postgraduate Diploma of Accounting in Monash
University in Australia in 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (“Ms. Lam”), aged 52, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since September
2020. She is also member of each of the audit committee, remuneration

committee and nomination committee.

She is currently an independent non-executive director of Century Group
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2113), the shares of which are

listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a master degree in Management from the Macquarie
University and a master degree in Applied Psychology from City University of
Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries),
the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.
She is also an accredited mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation
Association Limited, a member and a qualified graphologist of the British
Institute of Graphologists.

Prior to joining the Board, Ms. Lam has worked with an international
accounting firm and other leading listed and private group of companies
and has extensive experience in company secretarial practice, assurance,
treasury and finance. She is currently providing management consultancy
and corporate secretarial services to listed issuers and private companies, and
graphology consultancy and training services.
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Mr. Fu Yan Ming (“Mr. Fu”), aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since May 2021. He is
also member of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Fu is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained a Bachelors’ Degree of Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fu possess over 30 years of experience in accounting, audit, internal
control, financial management, strategic business planning, corporate
finance, merger and acquisition and corporate governance. He has worked
for various sizeable organizations including accounting firms, pharmaceutical
distribution company, TMT (Technology, Media and Telecommunications)
companies, manufacturing companies and consultancy firm. During the past
15 years, he held various senior positions including financial controller and
company secretary in main and GEM board listed companies of Hong Kong.
Mr. Fu was an executive director of On Real International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8245) from
October 2016 to September 2019. Mr. Fu is currently an independent non-
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Currently, Mr. Fu is the finance director of a consultancy firm which provide

various advice to private investment funds.
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Mr. Tai Man Tai (“Mr. Tai”), aged 37, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October 2021. He
is also member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee.

Mr. Tai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He obtained a Bachelors’ Degree in Accounting and Finance
from University of Hertfordshire.

Mr. Tai possesses over 13 years of experience in professional accounting as
well as technology business operation. In the past, Mr. Tai was responsible for
financial management in a sizeable integrated fitting-out company, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Currently,
Mr. Tai holds directorship in various private companies which are engaging
in global intelligent logistics, eCommerce with big data management and
professional services businesses.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 13. The principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on page 13 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk
management and fair values of financial instruments” in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial Summary
on page 168. The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources and energy saving. Green initiatives and measures have
been adopted in the Group's operation. A separate Environmental, Social
and Governance Report will be published no later than two months after the
publication of this annual report. For details, please refer to the Company's
website.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognises
that employees, customers and business partners are the keys to sustainable
development. The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees, providing quality services to our customers
and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

EFEILREAERBE T _—F+°8
=t+—HLEFEZ FREEEZ G BRE

FEXH
FRBZEBEBRKREER - TEWNBLEZ
FEEFHN G BREMEE29-

EF OB

FERARFEZ EZBRIRERANERRRERE
RZRHENEEELSI3EEEERML LD
fro AEE T EZMHNABMNAEEARHNE
13EEEERI DI RS B RERMEE26
M EREERERM T EATE —fHKE-

FAMBRERREEHAERFAREZD
HENF1BELFYHBRE - AEER IR
RIBHAIFENL - AEE BB T HIRIGRERR
BYERROEM  WEREA MIE TR A S M A B E R
KREKIBER - A EE 2 BB O RBORENE
Mo IR ERE ARG RN AERTIERD
MERRFSTTTIE - FIBHF 2R QB

FEECETHAEREEELEEATE LR
RERRER - AEBARNET BERREBE
FAEBRELRNER -AEERNEETE
TEYNREGR MR RESERRERIEAHR
EBBHNSIERF-

B EERERAR 37
E252021



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERERT

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year under review is as follows:

FTERRRMERS
AMARERDEMBEE) RO TEER
RAHRER 2 BB E 2 S ERRBEN R
AMT :

Percentage of the Group's total

HEEEBEEZTHST
Sales Purchases
$HE& 8
The largest customer RAEE 12%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREBEE&ES 38%
The largest supplier BRAMRER 36%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARBEEE ST 78%

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the Company's
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 57 to 167.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias, the Company’s
operating results, actual and expected financial performance, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and members of the
Group, the Group’s debt to equity ratios, liquidity position, the Group
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans, any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's
lender, general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business
and any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and relevant.
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The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any time
as it deems fits and necessary.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2021, there was no reserves available for distribution to
owners of the Company (2020 HK$20,733,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

£ S
RAMBREFEREEARSBMZEFZEFHUW
T

Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on
=1 BHERIE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chow Yik IS
Mr. Chung Man Lai fE b
Mr. Choi Pun Lap BARITE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRESLE
Mr. Yao Tong oS
Independent non-executive Directors B ERITES
Mr. Leung Man Chun g v
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria MBmEL
Mr. Fu Yan Ming RrRBRSE
Mr. Tai Man Tai e e
Dr. Lee G. Lam MRBEL

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Choi Pun Lap
who was appointed as executive Directors on 1 June 2021 and Mr. Fu Yan
Ming and Mr. Tai Man Tai who were appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 31 May 2021 and 1 October 2021 respectively will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Chung
Man Lai will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, had, or was deemed to
have any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
(Chapter 571 under the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the interests
and short positions of the persons, other than Directors, in the shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity

TERRYSR BB &15

SHENKRM - HRARPRESFZ
EEkXE
RIE_—F+_A=+—H HEZEENE
REREEEEE (EERBHRAER (5
FREAERE) (FBEMIFES715) EXVER) =2
e~ ERIRMDEES T AW RAEE T
() BREE S R BERAIEXVEETRESD
HHAERRBE KBz ERERE (B1FER
BREFRBERAIZEREEREFHES
BEZERIKR) ; HVBEREZ S RAER
5 5 3521R SE RN Z RPNV B e R 2 #E
Bk A ; g BREGEM E AR B 555,46 £5.67
BRI EANNB R BRI R A

FERRNRG KBRS Z
Em

TERE

BEEMAR N2 —F+ZHA=+—H"
BRESFIINZ ALTRRMIBBRMGFERLTA
KRABRBEFRPAEHRMNFEI6HEREFZ
MRz Em Rl

Approximate

Beneficial owner

BmBAA

Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung
TSRS

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

2. The total number of 1,272,640,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2021 has been
used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had not been
notified of other interests or short positions of any other person (other than the
Directors, chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the Company)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Number of percentage of
shares shareholding
RHPBE BMOREBDIL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
BizE1) (Hizt2)
663,477,955(L) 52.13%
Wit
1. TLEZN AR T RBHITE
2 RIE_—F+_B=+—HEBTRHBH

1,272,640,0000R EAN St BEHIABF DL

BrREXPMEEN KRB —F+"8
=+—RH FaRATEEENAEEAEMAL
(EF FAREBTHRAEREEZRRERIN
RAA B D SARRE IR D R ¥E A L8 X R ARIE
BERAEHRAE3B6HRFEEE LM H M
REmERAE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") whereby the Board may grant share options to employees, directors,
suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at its discretion, for
the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their contributions to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10 years commencing from 8
May 2013. Details of the Share Option Scheme were set out in the circular of
the Company dated 27 March 2013 and note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible Participant”
of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested Entity” be added to
the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the Share Option Scheme”). Details
of the Amendments to the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 April 2016 and the Company’s circular dated 13 April
2016.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2018,
shareholders approved the refreshment of the maximum number of shares which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all share options under the Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of options
available for granting by the Company under the Share Option Scheme was
127,264,000, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on that
date.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to date of this report, the
Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options under the
Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other that the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that requires
the Company to enter into an agreement that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, were entered into by the Group during the Year or existed at the
end of 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS ~ EZFMBRPFEBPZIEES

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, REE_Z_—F+_A=Z+—HLEEEKE
the Directors have the following interests in the business apart from the Group's ERAREE EENEAEREHRERENE
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with BEMEFHAIERBRGE X GBREAER

the Group’s business: TN REA TR
Director Name of company Nature of business Nature of interests
B3 AT £BME Eaig
Mr. Chung Man Lai *Greatewalle Inc. (“Greatewalle”) and its subsidiary Mobile games business Non-executive director of
(disposed in March 2021) Greatwalle
BNEBLE RWEERE (RAER) RENEAT FRIBHER RAEEZFRTESR
(#2013 B HE)
Mr Leung Man Chun *Evershine Group Holdings Limited (“Evershine”) and Money lending business and Independent non-executive director
(Note 1) its subsidiaries Mobile application business of Evershine
ANBEE () *XIREBZERERAR (TKE) & MEEBRFHRERERNERE KEZBIFNTES
ERBRAE
Dr. Lee G. Lam (Note 2) AHang Pin Living Technology Company Limited Money lending business Independent non-executive director
("Hang Pin Living") and its subsidiary of Hang Pin Living
MREBEL (5E2) MR EERERAERAS (MimdiE)) WEER MeEEZEUFATES
REKBAT
AMei Ah Entertainment Group Limited Mobile games applications Independent non-executive director
("Mei Ah") and its associate business of Mei Ah
NEGREEREFBRAT ((ER) FRIBEERRELER EnZBUFINTES
REEERE]
* listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange * RE#AZPRGEM £
A listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange A TRERAZ PR FE AR L
Notes: iz
1. Mr. Leung Man Chun resigned as independent non-executive director of Evershine 1. AXBEEEFEKBZEBIIFNTES B2
with effect from 12 January 2021 and resigned as an independent non-executive Z—F—A+ZHEREN REEEEIIIERNTE
Director with effect from 1 October 2021. £ BT —HF+HA—HEEER-
2. Dr. Lee G. Lam resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 2. MREELIEREBLIFNTES BT _—F
March 2021. —B—HEER-
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As the Board is independent to the boards of the above mentioned
companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of,
and at arm’s length, from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors has an interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business in which the Group is engaged.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any of the
Directors and chief executive, their respective spouses or children under
the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 14 to 31 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review, in draft form, the
Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit
committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control of the Group. As at
the date of this report, the audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Mr. Tai Man Tai, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Fu Yan Ming. Mr. Tai Man
Tai is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2021 interim report
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

(1) Mr. Choi Pun Lap was appointed as an executive director of Zhejiang
United Investment Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366), the
issued shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 30 September 2021.

(2)  Mr. Fu Yan Ming was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited (stock
code: 8366), the issued shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 21 October 2021.

(3) Mr. Tai Man Tai was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company with effect
from 1 October 2021.

(4)  Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Century Group International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2113), the issued shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 October 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public float

requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERERS

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions that need to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, the Directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duty of their respective
offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors,
the company secretary of the Company and officers of the Company for
the financial period ended 25 April 2021. Due to an inadvertent error or
negligence on handling the renewal of the appropriate insurance, the
Company has already arranged appropriate insurance cover on 1 March
2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019, 2010 and 2021 were audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly

Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chung Man Lai
Executive Director

23 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EM RS

@ pakerti lly
K B [ PR
Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 57 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were

FEEFER

RERMZEEZAE FEEAFEAZEHRR
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements AR BRRE I RBEECEH - ZEEEE
ERMAEGREMBRRETEI ZERBBRT
BRI TR EHER  MEMEFMEZERE
BiiRHER-

of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter
TEEHFE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAREBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwiill

BEBZRENAARZ EEHE

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(i)iii) and 13 of the consolidated financial statements
BRI G M EEIRANE2(e)~ 2001) K13

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has recognised goodwill of  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
HK$20,236,000 in relation to software platform business in Hong  HEFfEI S EZ B EFEE EPEE) :

Kong.

A TET—F+"B=+—H> EEEERREENHGEF
B XK E20,236,00058 7T ©

The determination as to whether goodwill was impaired involved
significant management judgement and estimates. There is a risk
that the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable in
full through the expected value-in-use future cash flows to be
generated from the relevant cash-generating unit (“CGU") to
which the goodwill has been allocated.

EETHERERT T REAEEAE R -FEBEZRE
BEREBEPETZHENEMRSELEN ((REELE
i) EERRRIRERENRMERBES IR ER -

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in particular those relating to the revenue
growth rate, pre-tax discount rate;

FMEREREEEAMERAZEIEZBRR KT EZGE
Mo FHRRREEREAMAMBERERZRR
BE

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
approved by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management's forecasting;

SHERBEREERMRtEZIRENETRR  BEF G
EEEBRT st ERY TRETEREREZSE
REETHERMIAEEERAZEE ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
EBHER

Bt FE (@)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

iz RENSERZ T EE (@)

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(i)iii) and 13 of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BB B BRAEMZE2(e) ~ 2()ii)F 13 ()

The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill is based on
the valuation methodology, including discount rates and revenue
growth rates, in estimate the future business’ prospect and
forecast business performance of the CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated.

BEZPREIEETEDERERGES E BFEMREERRIK
SEIBRE DA RREF IR REEI R ENREELS
(UASEEEEE S S35 X

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the Group's
consolidated financial statements and the significant degree of
management judgement and estimation involved, particularly in
the determination of the assumptions used in the calculation of
the recoverable amount.

HREENRET G BEERGEVBRRNEELRIR
BIEENEREEHE ARG FR R EESE oD &R
FEFTEEANRE AERMEEERE TR EATESRTSE
I8 o
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assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including operation growth beyond the
2022 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and
discount rates used in the discounted cash flow model
for impairment testing on the carrying amount of the
goodwill; and

MRS RRSCZBEY 8 "2 " " F5F4E
T’Eiﬁ!‘JLx%Zﬁi‘%iEE\Eﬁﬁi“%%&ﬁ'ﬁﬁgﬁéﬁﬁf_
TRER R AEIRIBE AR EAKIREE |

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on the determination of
the recoverable amount of goodwill.

AMEZERBEAHGEREBRZRR BIZFHE
EEHEUWCITEAFRBRELEZRR BRZK

BERERD
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FTEEEIE (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

The Key Audit Matter
FEEFE

Valuation and impairment loss of loans and interest receivables

FEWER RS Z G EKRRERE

Refer to Notes 2(i)(i), 2(k), 7, 16 and 26(a) of the consolidated financial statements
5B RIS TS IR AT E20)0)~ 2(k)~ 7~ 16/%26(a)

The Group has developed its money lending business in Hong  Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

Kong as a separate major line of business of the Group and FFEIL A EZ ETRRFEE (HPEE) !

recognised loans and interest receivables recorded initially at fair
value and subsequently at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

EEEUBHREENERERLERS SEEN-—BEILE
EREBRIRET BN RRNERD L URAFEARLEZL
IR A AR BRERRF]E -

In September 2021, the Group’s management decided to cease
operations of the money lending business in view of keen market
competition and the challenging environment with the risks
associated with the possible default by the loan borrowers and
which constituted a discontinued operation in the current year as
disclosed in note 7.

KRB —FAA BERBCINMERF REBREMENIRE
DR EMERARRERNNER &R EEBRER LEE
EMER MILEANETFIREZ A FEDRIEEE X

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts of the loans
receivable and interest receivables were HK$4,908,000 (2020:
HK$76,610,000) and HK$Nil (2020: HK$6,156,000), net of
loss allowance of HK$89,558,000 (2020: HK$18,735,000) and
HK$10,247,000 (2020: HK$3,356,000) respectively.

ATE_—F+"RA=+—H BEREIFRERANEZR®T

SEED 44,908,000 70 (CE T4 © 76,610,000 7T) &
THET (CE T4 6,156,000587T)  HREEEEHE DR A
89,558,000 75 (T — T4 : 18,735,0005875) 510,247,000
7T (CE =] : 3,356,000587T) ©

obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan
agreements and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group's accounting records;

ERRBEENHREALER SSEEETLHR
PrARE MR FBHARAMER ;

testing of controls designed and applied in the process
of monitoring repayment status;

HEREBERURE ZBR PRt KR IER Z EHIET
AE

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology,
the governance for the ECL models, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

b EBERERERARES A BRESRR
BRZ2ER BEEEEERREEHERER
ZHMABBRBRRZBEYNE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
EBHER

Bt FE (@)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARBHAPEEZFEZHE

Valuation and impairment loss of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

B E™RKRF S Z MERBERSE (8)

Refer to Notes 2(i)(i), 2(k), 7, 16 and 26(a) of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI E I FEIRZMEL20)()~ 2(k)~ 7~ 16/%26(a) ()

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL") requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model such as
the probabilities of default, loss given default, expected future
cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors, especially
taken into account the impact of prolonged COVID-19 pandemic.

TBRHEERE (RMEEBER) St E2REREXHE A
BREHNEEEERERSCZAR ’u&?ﬁ,ﬁﬁfé‘ﬁﬁﬂéﬁ‘ﬁqﬂ
BRZRE FIINEAFISEIE  BAIRK FREIRRIRERE

AIBEME 2 REAGERZER 15 5]E BCOVID-19% B A %f#;.h

Due to the significant deterioration of loans and interest
receivables with impairment loss of HK$77,714,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and inherent uncertainty involved
in such estimates, we considered this as a key audit matter.

HREE— —F+-_B=+—HIEERKRERAFIEER
EFE1E (ﬂ@%ﬂ;ﬁ 714,000 70) B BEHI REE FHEE
M PR AL —IBFEEFERE
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assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk, default
or credit-impaired, including the additional measures
arising from prolonged COVID-19 pandemic, and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

Sl f%?ﬁﬁﬂ%%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ& BEEEFEE
BRE - BOSEERIE (BIEREECOVID-19%15
IEBIRER RV ERSMEN) RS B BB REE/mE
EZRBRERIZXARMEEBREREFBZIF
FREMFEZ GEMK

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis; and

MEEFRAERDZERFBWEA ;

reviewing any subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management
to assess the adequacy of provisions against any
unsettled past-due balances.

%ﬁﬁTﬁze—E{jnD%uaﬁ’jﬁﬂ EED@F%EEDU
MAFREFRIARET L RERSREZRA
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OTHER INFORMATION Hth&x

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information EXaFHEMER c AMERBIEFRAFTEH
comprises all the information included in the annual report, but does not FIEERD BEREEGREMBRRAEMNZE
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report WARPTEL 2 BN R S ©

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the KMEEReMBERE2BRREABEAEMERN M
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion BAL R BRI R 2 RS

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our BRERMEGREMBRR B HMZ2EER
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider RBEMERD TAILBREREREZREMENEDS
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated RIREHMBERRIBMESSTHMMET ZIBER
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise BEBART—H2ER HrI U EM A EE
appears to be materially misstated. KEEERMERM 0

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a WRBERMFTETZ TE ZMARALLEMER
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report GFREEARERMEM A HRMBEREZEE - FM

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. KA ETEREMAETRE 2EE
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE BEERAREBEMGSMIZHREKRE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE ARIEZEE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial SR EEERESAGHMAGEM 2T AN
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued BREEAREBEATEAZKREREHFLE
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies BEMATRMZASHBRT BEBER AR
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is HREMBIRRANE 2 NELEEIE  LUIERE ]
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that BRERAGFEHRNFRERMER C EARLE
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. SRR

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are AREGEVBRRFE ESAEMTME B8

responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, ERELSERE ) IHE ER) AFECEER
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the Z2EEMMEAFERSEAGHESE RIEFESHR
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to 7 BEEEFBRIKILKEET iERBET
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but PRI EEEMUERBR I BER A%

to do so.

FREEEEER ZEBZVBREBRE-

ﬁl{q:

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EM RS

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Choi Kwong Yu.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2022

Choi Kwong Yu

Practising certificate number PO5071
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nv-F j:ﬂ m 1%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZEZ_Z

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (8757

™)

“—H+ZRA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
T —F “EBTEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FAET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Continuing operations FHBREET
Revenue U&= 3 20,258 20,730
Cost of sales HEMRA (11,889) (11,699)
Gross profit EF] 8,369 9,031
Other income, net HAUR AR 28 4 11,640 2,974
Administrative expenses THREX (21,002) (49,333)
Research and development expenses IReEEREs2 (5,083) (4,803)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMASZ (2,230) (2,193)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mILEERERE 12 - (19,003)
Impairment loss on goodwill EERIERE 13 - (19,555)
Loss from operations KSR (8.306) (82,882)
Finance costs [CiF=¥%:N 5(@@) (1,456) (1,828)
Loss before taxation PRIRAIESIE 5 (9,762) (84,710)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigf Bk 8% 6 (1,215) 5,158
Loss for the year from continuing operations {54 AS S ¥ 2 FEEIE (10,977) (79,552)
Discontinued operation BRI REES
Loss for the year from discontinued operation B4R IEAEE ;2 FEEE 7 (77,009) (8,445)
Loss for the year FEEIE (87,986) (87,997)
HigFEERFRAE 57
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

&= A 2L

EEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE-"Z - —F+"F=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7T57R)

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 THET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Attributable to: LUTFALRE:
Owners of the Company RABHEA A
— From continuing operations —REFELSERS (6,328) (63,166)
— From discontinued operation — BB ES (77,009) (8,445)
(83,337) (71,611)
Non-controlling interests JEER
— From continuing operations —IREIFEREET (4,649) (16,386)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEEES - -
(4,649) (16,386)
Loss for the year FEEIE (87,986) (87,997)
Loss per share SKREE 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEAREE (GB1)
— From continuing operations —IREFEREE (0.50) (4.97)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEEERS (6.05) (0.66)
(6.55) (5.63)

The notes on pages 67 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial FO7EE167B Z et R AR E M B IRER 2 4K

statements. =ik
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GrefmkEMEEHKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_E_—F+_F=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T5R)

2021 2020
T —F TETEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FAET FHET
(re-presented)
E#MZ5))
Loss for the year FEEIE (87,986) (87,997)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHME2EKE ~ (F%) »
for the year, net of nil tax BINBREMIE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ~ H#&BJAEEHNIEEIBH
to profit or loss: BH
— Exchange differences on translation — B INEEFEERKR 2
of financial statements of foreign PERZERE
operations 37 94
— Cumulative exchange loss reclassified —BUH—RERE A%
from equity to profit or loss upon HEmEMDBEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary RtEREE 5(c) - 169
— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from —HEME AT % BED
equity to profit or loss upon disposal of %%ﬁ NEEEmZ RET
subsidiaries U 29(c) = )
ltem that will not be reclassified E?ﬁﬁ% “FEMNEEER
to profit or loss: 1=
— Loss on disposal of equity investments —HERAFESAHMEE
measured at fair value through other Wz (TFvoCl)) st8 2
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") A E 2~ E518 - (152)
37 109
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE 2 HEH X425 (87,949) (87,888)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GrefmkEMEEHNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_E_—F+_F=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7t5R)

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 THET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Attributable to: WU ALTHE
Owners of the Company KREEB A
— From continuing operations —REBREREET (6,306) (63,093)
— From discontinued operation —RE AR IERE X (77,009) (8,445)
(83,315) (71,538)
Non-controlling interests FEER S
— From continuing operations —REBREREET (4,634) (16,350)
— From discontinued operation —REERIEREER - -
(4,634) (16,350)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE 2 HER %8 (87,949) (87,888)
The notes on pages 67 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial FO/TERI67EZMF ARG SIS RKR 2 HK

statements.

BB e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2021 R &

—&E+=A=+—8

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M 7THR)

2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
JioEE FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE

Property, plant and equipment LERN YN Y 11 268 34,796
Intangible assets BLEE 12 - 2,760
Goodwill EE 13 20,236 20,236
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 1,240 528
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE 22(b) - 1,248
21,744 59,568

Current assets RHEE
Trade and other receivables & WS B 0 R LAt 8 UL RR 15 5,235 13,770
Loans receivable W ER 6 4,908 76,610
Interest receivables [EUFI 2 16 — 6,156
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 17 3,791 3,415
13,934 99,951

Current liabilities mEAaRE
Trade and other payables [EfTER A R Efh FE (ST =X 18 1,992 3,202
Contract liabilities aBHEE 19 4,652 3,830
Interest-bearing borrowings {ERSSIEEN 20 908 37,060
Lease liabilities HEEE 21 734 543
Current tax payable FE(TBPEAFRIE 22(a) - 53
8,286 44,688
Net current assets MBEERE 5,648 55,263
Total assets less current liabilities BEEEERTHER 27,392 114,831
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2021 R Z-Z

—&E+=B=+—8

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7THR)

2021 2020
—E—F —ETFF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Viok=3 FET FET
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Lease liabilities HESE 21 510 -
510 -
NET ASSETS BHETRE 26,882 114,831
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital (&N 25(a) 50,906 50,906
Reserves i (19,531) 63,784
Total equity attributable to EATEE AEG#EREEE
owners of the Company 31,375 114,690
Non-controlling interests JEER (4,493) 141
TOTAL EQUITY 48R 26,882 114,831

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March EFGNR T _F=ZAT=HHLERER

2022. Filgso
Choi Pun Lap Chung Man Lai
B8R EXE
Director Director
EE EE

Fe7TERI67BEZ ARG E M RKR ZHM
statements. =ik

The notes on pages 67 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial

—*° 62
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
rEEmEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T - —F+"F=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7t8m)

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRAAER
Fair value
reserve Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange (non- Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve  recycling) reserve losses Total interests Total
"-T-féﬁ‘ﬁ%

R RVEE AAEE  EARE  EREE (FTEH)  RtEE  RHER B JHIRED st
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 - HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK000  HK§'000
TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEnr Tz TEr  TEn  TEx

(note (note (note (note (note
25(b)) 25(b)i) 25(bif) 25(0)(v) 25(0)v))
(HizE (£ (s (st (st
25(0)()) 25(0)i)) 25(o)ii)) 25(0)(v)) 25(0)(v))
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZE-Z%£-F-H
24t 50906 381490 2427 16,699 (291) (348) (99)  (264,240) 186,544 16175 202,719
Changes in equity for 2020: “RCSERGEE.
Loss for the year EEHE - - - - - - - (et (et (16386)  (87,997)
Other comprehensive incomel(expense)  EEE 2 E N,/
for the year, net of il tax %) ENRERE
- Bxchange differences on translation  — BN EHEER
of financial statements of foreign RLERER
operations - - - - 58 - - - 58 36 9%
- Cumulative exchange loss -WEHR-EREA
reclassified to profit or loss upon ARENNEER
deregistration of a subsidiary mZ? JERES?E - - - - 169 - - - 169 - 169
- Cumulative exchange gain reclassified
to profit or loss upon disposal of
subsidiaries - - - - 2) - - - 2) @
- Loss on disposal of equity —EEEFVOCH;Z
investments measured at FVOCI RagEzEE - - - - - - - (152) (152) - (152)
Total comprehensive income/ EE2ENE/ (Y
(expense) for the year et - - - - 25 - - (1763 (71153%)  (16350)  (87,889)
Transfer of fair value reserve (non- R ﬁg}’QFVOCHz B
recycling) upon the disposal of equity  RERERATERE
investments measured at FVOCI (foEe) - - - - - 348 - (348) - - -
Acquisition of a non- e EnkER
controlling interest - - - - - - (316) - (316) 316 -
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZ%E
1 January 2021 12AZ+-HR
ZZ--%-B-H 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (66) - (415) (336,351) 114,690 M 114,831
Changes in equity for 2021: ZRC-FuRGER.
Loss for the year FEHE - - - - - - - (8333 (83330 (4649 (87,936)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEANE
for the year, net of nil tax ENEERE
- Exchange differences on translation ~ —AEINEIEHEHR
of financial statements of foreign RLERER
operations - - - - 2 - - - 22 15 37
Total comprehensive income/ EERENE/ (A%
(expense) for the year k] - - - - 7 - - (83,337) (83,315) (4,634) (87,949)
Transfer of reserves upon disposal of ~ FHE—EIHBARR
a subsidiary i - - - S S S 313 (313 S = =
At 31 December 2021 R-E_-£
+ZB=+-H 50,906 381,490 2427 16,699 (44) - (102) (420,001) 31,375 (4,493) 26,882

The notes on pages 67 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial FO/TERI67TEZMF ARG EMFRKR Z AN
statements. ik
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ_ZE_—F+_A=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7t5m)

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FAET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Operating activities KRS
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8
— From continuing operations —REFEKREER (9,762) (84,710)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEE RS 7 (77,009) (8,445)
Adjustments for: HHE
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EEEH 5() - 12,272
- Bank interest income —IRITFE WA 4 = 3)
— Cumulative exchange loss reclassified —BUHEM—REREA 71%
from equity to profit or loss upon HEmEMOEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary L EREE 5() — 169
— Depreciation of property, —ME - -BMERKLEITE
plant and equipment 3,519 6,016
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — (RS EITE 5(c) 775 1,984
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net —[EZ & B2 2558 35 41
— Finance costs — B A 1,456 1,896
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net —HERB AR 2 W E FEE 4 (2,161) (185)
— Gain on early termination of leases — R LR E 2 WA 4 - (16)
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —ﬁ’i#%% R Az
plant and equipment, net S (W) 1R (9,554) 1,267
— Impairment loss on deposits —RERERE 5(c) 31 5,000
— Impairment loss on goodwill —HERERE 13 - 19,555
— Impairment loss on intangible assets — B EEREREE 12 — 19,003
— Impairment loss on loans and — B RF] EREE
interest receivables 7(b) 77,714 17,159
— Impairment loss on trade receivables —FEWER R B RS 18 5(0) 4 5,457
— Write-off of deposits and other receivables — —#fi #4322 & & E fhFE U sk 5(c) 4,577 -
— Write-off of intangible assets — S A B E 5() 3,680 3,000
— Write-off of loans and interest receivables — —ifit4fEUN S & T & 7(b) — 96
— Write-off of trade receivables — i £ P LS AR AR 5() = 1,469
64 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZEZ_Z
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (8757

)

“—H+ZRA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
T —F TETEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FAET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Operating (loss)/profit before EEESEHHZ
working capital changes & (B518) m Al (6,695) 1,025
Decrease in contract assets SHNEERD - 3,865
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FE LAt B R R L fih JFE Lt =
other receivables A (g 3,923 (13,019)
Decrease in loans and interest receivables FEWE TR F) BRI 144 10,552
Increase in trade and other payables FE AT BR 30 B ELAth FE (T =R G D 942 609
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities sHasdEEm, Gl 822 (1,366)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EiE (FrH) PRSI & 5%
operations (864) 1,666
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEENE = (664)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FRA) FRSIRE 3
operating activities (864) 1,002
Investing activities REES
Expenditure on projects development THEMESZH (920) (2,760)
Interest received BUFHE —* 3
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal HENBARZIRE
of subsidiaries CRH) /RAFEE 29 (11) 1,487
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BERERENER
plant and equipment (134) (325)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE KRE REEERIE
plant and equipment 40,697 1,140
Net cash generated from/(used in) KREEHAE (FiR) RE35HE
investing activities 39,632 (455)
HAFREEBRAR 65
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BRERER

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZEZ_—Z

T—H+ZRA=1+—HLEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B 7t5m)
2021 2020
T —F “EBTEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FAET FHET
(re-presented)
EWE75)
Financing activities LB EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEEEEARIY 17(b) (787) (1,687)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEEHEESH S 17(b) (28) (143)
Interest paid BEFHE 17(b) (1,428) (1,753)
Loans repayment to a third party B—2E=ZHEEER 17(b) = (1,000)
New loans from third parties REE=FZHEM 17(b) 908 1,900
Repayment of bank loans BERITER 17(b) (37,060) (4,106)
Net cash used in financing activities B ESFAREFEEE (38,395) (6,789)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HERREZEY
and cash equivalents w#m, GRiL) 358 373 (6,242)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZRERBESEEY 3,415 9,610
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFHFE 3 47
Cash and cash equivalents BW+ZBA=+—BZzZHRExK
at 31 December REEEY 3,791 3,415
* Below HK$1,000. * 18541,00038 75 °
The notes on pages 67 to 167 form part of the consolidated financial FO/TERI67EZMF ARG SIS RKR 2 HK
statements. =i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e MR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
Its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered office
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. On 8 October 2021, the principal
place of business of the Company was changed from 21st Floor,
Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong to Unit 511, 5/F,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Hong
Kong. Subsequent to end of the reporting period, the Company’s
principal place of business has been further changed to Room A6-D,
12/F, Block A, Hong Kong Industrial Centre, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 11 March 2022.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group's presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 g |

RAFS R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

2

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

(b)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 g |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

2

AT ER R M 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 31.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

— Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19 — Related Rent

Concessions”

— Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

“Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2"

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group's results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period (see note 32).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

70

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to equity owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(i)ii)).
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72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)iii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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AT ER R M 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(7

Property, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)

(iii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings 12 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
remaining terms of leases

(whichever is shorter)

Furniture and fixtures 4 to 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 4 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,

if any, are reviewed annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

74

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)
(iii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(i)iii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date when they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:
Development costs 3 years
Mobile games 2 to 5 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both
the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract as a lessee contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

76

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract ("lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions
are rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period.
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AT ER R M 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(iii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
right-of-use assets using the straight-line method over the lease
term or where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership of
the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note 2(f).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

() Credit losses from financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents, loans and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive), discounted at original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of
these financial assets. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the
end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial assets since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
asset assessed at the end of the reporting period with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset's credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(s)
(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised at fair
value, which is determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm'’s length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial

guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount in respect of
the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default on the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the
risk that the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued, in which case a
lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default
and the same assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 2(i)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amount that the Group expects to receive from the holder
of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(7)) Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(7)) Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating until if the allocation can be done
on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating until if otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(7)) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

a0

(k)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price and
are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for credit losses (see
note 2(i)(i)).

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to borrowers and are
classified as current assets if the collection of loans receivable is
expected in one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets. Interest receivables are interests derived from
loans granted to borrowers.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note

2(0)().

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(s)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 2(j)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2(u)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. \Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(q) Income tax (Continued)

20

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(q) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEEHEER @
(CONTINUED)
(q) Income tax (Continued) (q) FrigiR (8)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements BN ERFR TR 45 BR R IR IE AR TR A5 BR LA K
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not MEEESH D25 B E EEIR
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, o BN AEEA A A IERBIHIT
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Z RER) U BN EAFR TE & A= 4K 35 B HA
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax RESE MERTEUTEEIMEMSF
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional B BNEA R RIERIBE EM S EA
conditions are met: AT
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group — TEREEEREEmS
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the FEBERERPFEEELSE
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or HEREREERFESRE;
%
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they - MECRBEEEREEMS
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation HZERIERIEEE R aEA
authority on either: F—R#% & BB P
B> BRRMEKRER :
-~ the same taxable entity; or — BE—ERREEEUL;
57
- different taxable entities, which, in each future —  FRERREREEU
period in which significant amounts of deferred MZEEREFTEERK
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or ZETEER B R ERIEER
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets BHEREEEEHKE
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or RIERRIEE 2 7 LA [E]
realise and settle simultaneously. ZHIBR RRF A
HEEIPNANEEERK
EEENARESE
FIFEIRZEE KRG
ZEE&-
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AT ER R M 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of software platform services
and revenue from mobile games and applications in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
when the goods are delivered to customers and
titles has been passed which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods;

Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the maintenance service contract;

Software subscription income from software
application and website development, which are
recognised at point in time when the relevant

services are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development deriving
from providing software application and electronic
learning platform to customers, which is recognised
over time when services are rendered. Revenue
is also recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the contract liabilities over the term of the service
contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(1)

(iir)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
note 2(i)(i)).

Revenue from mobile games and applications

includes:

- Publishing income from online game platform
owners, which is recognised at point in time on net
basis from platform owners when the paying players
purchase the game credits for the mobile games
after deducting pre-determined commissions; and

- Service income from the provision of mobile games
and applications development and related services,
which are recognised over time when the services
are rendered in accordance with the contracts.

Government gféJHTS

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(7

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill arising on the
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to

resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit

or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;

and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

M

)

(€)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

)

)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBS IRRMEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UABTTHIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WmKkaMBHRS
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services W15 B B I e T o iRFS m i
supplied to customers from the provision of software platform EYFERzERKRBZHERBE
services and revenue generated from mobile games and MREFREBRZERMEEZ
applications development. An analysis of the Group’s revenue Wit o BB HEREERNE 10K H
within the scope of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with P&afNm SRR ERRmZE
Customers” disaggregated by major products or service lines is BEEGBBRBEI D2 AAT
as follows:
2021 2020
—E—F S
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
(re-presented)
(EHMZ5))
From continuing operations REFERSEER
Provision of software platform services R &R 20,213 20,403
Mobile games and applications I 18 50 184 e FE B 45 327
20,258 20,730
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by B mEREE e HGED 2
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is BREHWE D I E R M EE3(b)))
disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii) respectively. K23(b)ii) o
For the IT service contracts in existence as at 31 December W _E_—F+"_A=+—HZ&E
2021, the Group will recognise the expected revenue in the ABERBEOMS  AEBRFRN
future when the remaining performance obligations under the RIER ST R B RTSFE
contracts are satisfied (see note 2(s)())). The Group has applied RrafAWE (BHIEE2(s)() o AEH
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15, as the ERAEAMBEREHEAEI155RE
Group has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly to the 121 21T E R % REEHRE
value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to BEERMASE BEHELREER
date. ZSRIEERRERBANEE
(b) Segment reporting (b) HEIERE

—* 100

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which
are used to make strategic decisions.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

()

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has two (2020: three) reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable
segments:

Continuing operations

— Software platform :  Developing and marketing of
patented server based technology
and the provision of communications
software platform and software
related services.

— Mobile games and :  Game publishing, development of
applications mobile games and related intellectual
property and platform, mobile
applications and data solutions and

provision of IT related solutions.

Discontinued operation

— Money lending : Provision of money lending business
("Money Lending through Aurum Pacific Finance
Business”) Limited (“AP Finance”), a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company
which was a money lender licensed
in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) up to 2 June
2021.

3

Wz kB E ()
(b) #EHE ()

FEBEME (CEZEF: =@ 7
BEDE - AN B EBRETFE
mR AR PR R B AE
W EMEER EE - EREREE
ZRIREDEE > TEEERRE
WGP 2 EEDERG o &
EERFRE DB ZEFMAMT

—BfTe 0 HEREHU
E RGN
BERZEMK
RHBARM
- A R AE
A AR o

— FRERR ¢ BITERRE
FER F % 25 B A0 AR

B R0 E R

Fa~FHRER

K BIERRT

£ Wi AR

BB R

=

VAE L
RIEEETR

- BE(ME : EE_ZT_—
ESE) ERBZH B

IRAE] (TERAGR
%) BBENE
B (BEBEBIE
1638) BT Z
EBFERRE
AZE2EN B
N B IR MM E
AR o

BRTERERERAR W

E252021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e M HwRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Wz kB E ()
(b) HEFHE (&

Business segment

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

() ZEFDE

2021
b S
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
BALE
REREER R
Mobile
Software  games and Money
platform applications Sub-total lending Total
FHER
BHEFEE KFER et MfE “azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Disaggregated by timing of R B R B R 21
revenue recognition
Point in time RE—BEE 11,953 45 11,998 - 11,998
Over time FEE R 8,260 - 8,260 773 9,033
Revenue from external customers  ZEEINRE A Z WS 20,213 45 20,258 773 21,031
Reportable segment loss RGN AR
("adjusted EBITDA") (M4 ZH%EEBITDA J) (430) (9,194) (9,624) (76,898) (86,522)
Depreciation and amortisation e R s 887 37 924 110 1,034
Impairment losses on: THIEE 2R ERSIE
— deposits —& - 31 31 - 31
— loans and interest receivables —ERERRAE - - - 77,714 77,714
— trade receivables —FEUER R 4 = 4 = 4
Write-off of: THIEE Z#MH
— deposits and other receivables — & R HAEURE - 4,567 4,567 = 4,567
— intangible assets -mLEE - 3,680 3,680 - 3,680
Interest on: THEBEZAE
- lease liabilities —HEaE 27 1 28 - 28
— bank borrowings —RITfER - 635 635 - 635
Income tax expense PR - 1,215 1,215 - 1,215
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 7,985 2,159 10,144 5,051 15,195
Additions to non-current assets  FERENEEIETN 1,622 920 2,542 - 2,542
Reportable segment liabilities AIRENLERE (6,078) (126) (6,204) (227) (6,431)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUAETTHITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WH@EKRaEHHE (@)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
Business segment (Continued)

(i)

(b) FEFEE (#)
(i) ZEFEDE ()

2020 (re-presented)
ZZT2E (EWMEY)

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
B&LE
Mobile
Software  games and Money
platform  applications Sub-total lending Total
FH A
BHTE T & INEE WE dmt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT R FATT FATT R
Disaggregated by timing of B REERREE 2

revenue recognition
Point in time RE—FREE 12,934 327 13,261 - 13,261
Over time MEERRE 7,469 - 7,469 10,690 18,159
Revenue from external customers B INAE L 2 W 20,403 327 20,730 10,690 31,420
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AREN TR, (5518)

("adjusted EBITDA") (M#=B#EEBITDA J) 2,893 (12,532) (9,639) (8,788) (18,427)
Depreciation and amortisation e R s 972 12,310 13,282 377 13,659
Impairment losses on: TIEE 2R ESE

— goodwill -HE - 19,555 19,555 - 19,555

— intangible assets -BREE - 19,003 19,003 - 19,003

—loans and interest receivables —ERETRFE - - - 17,159 17,159

— trade receivables —EWERR 57 5,400 5,457 - 5,457
Write-off of: T5)IBEB Z ity

— intangible assets -BEEE - 3,000 3,000 - 3,000

—loans and interest receivables —EWERRFE - - - 9 9

— trade receivables —EWERA - 1,469 1,469 - 1,469
Interest on: THEEZAE

— lease liabilities —HEaf’ 49 3 52 - 52

— bank borrowings —IRITER - 851 851 - 851

— other borrowings —HMER - - - 68 68
Income tax credit RSkl - (5,158) (5,158) - (5,158)
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 7,717 13,937 21,654 84,322 105,976
Additions to non-current assets FEMENEELM 325 2,760 3,085 1,530 4,615
Reportable segment liabilities AREDBERE (4,468) (15,917) (20,385) (1,456) (21,841)

The measure used for reporting segment result is EERDHEEMKAZTES
“adjusted EBITDA”, i.e, “adjusted earnings before M4 SHEEEBITDA | - BN T4 %8
BRAE RIS~ T EE R B Al
s o T T4 EE R A AR
BIEIERBEE 2 RERBE

interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
"“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets.
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kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

— = 104

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WEKkDEHERS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEHE (4
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i)  BI#RE 7B 7 ~ 1R A
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEREEZHEK
2021 2020
—E-—#& k-3
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
(re-presented)
(EMZ27))
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue from REFELSEBEN
continuing operations A 2| IU R 20,258 20,730
Reportable segment revenue from REDKIEESERN
discontinued operation 2D EUL = 773 10,690
21,031 31,420
Loss for the year FERE
Reportable segment loss from R BFESEEB
continuing operations 2D ELEIE 9,624 9,639
Reportable segment loss from RE AR IEREERN
discontinued operation A2 D ELETE 76,898 8,788
Unallocated corporate income Ko EWAKME
and expenses 1,464 69,570
87,986 87,997
Total assets BEHE
Reportable segment assets from REFELSEBEN
continuing operations RIEWDEEE 10,144 21,654
Reportable segment assets from REBAIEREEREN
discontinued operation A2WNEEE 5,051 84,322
Unallocated corporate assets KO EEE 20,483 53,543
35,678 159,519
Total liabilities BfRE%E
Reportable segment liabilities from REFELSEEBEN
continuing operations AZ2WNEEE 6,204 20,385
Reportable segment liabilities from REBRIEREEHEN
discontinued operation EEE SR =k 227 1,456
Unallocated corporate liabilities FoBEEXEE 2,365 22,847
8,796 44,688
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

3

Wz kB E ()
(b) HEFHE (&

(i)

(iir)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued|)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include depreciation and amortisation, finance costs,
impairment loss on goodwill, staff costs and legal and
professional fees of head office. The unallocated corporate
assets and liabilities mainly include goodwill, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, prepayments,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision-maker
for the purposes of performance assessment and resource
allocation.

Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group's property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets, in case of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
case of intangible assets and goodwill.

(i) FI#RE 7 EF i ai ~ 78 m

BERERZHR (B
ROMEEBARFZTIEE
BITER#E MEMES B
EREREBIREES TR
BURERREEER KD
EtxEERBRAEZERE
EE B R
REE -RURE-HEARE
Mg BAETR © T pER IR 54l
KRERDE AT BZEARARE
ZEHRFN

(i) HEEFREEES

NREHIBRGAEERE S
RERPZE@mKINVEERZ
W -BERRE EREE
E-BREENKRBE (45
EFERBEE)) FIEMEZ
Bl fEIFRENE EPTTEH
SR EEBRIEME G
E BEARBUREHARE
EME) REEPREME GLE
WEEKBEMS) 85

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RESMRERZUE BEFRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—¥-—&F "E_BF ¥ "B EBF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FBT
Hong Kong E5 20,968 31,082 21,744 58,282
Mainland China FREI Ayt - - - 38
Others Hih 63 338 - =
21,031 31,420 21,744 58,320
Others mainly cover Europe, Taiwan and Thailand. HFZHERMN BB KRE
o

BRTERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= AR 2
e MRS ERRMIEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UABTTHIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WERkIERERE (&)
(CONTINUED) _
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEEE (4B)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) MEBERRFEEF (B)
(Continued)
Revenue from major customer arising provision of BN ER10% /A L2 KRB E
software platform services which accounted for 10% or BERRZINmES BRERG
more of the total revenue is set out below: FER &I ¢
2021 2020
—E—F =l
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Customer A ZEA 2,433 N/A- 38
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of # AERI R R AU ER 10% ©
the total revenue.
4 OTHER INCOME, NET 4 HMEAFEE
2021 2020
ot S5 —EoTs
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(re-presented)
E#Z5))
From continuing operations REFBESEETR
Bank interest income IRITH B A =* 3
Foreign exchange loss, net FER 18358 (30) (5)
Gain on early termination of leases IRAIRIEFE 2 W - 16
Gain on disposal of property, HEMZE -BERREZWRFEE
plant and equipment, net 9,274 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENB AR 2 W mFEE 2,161 185
Government grants B Bh = 2,755
Sundry income B A 235 20
11,640 2,974
* Below HK$1,000. * 1,000 7L ©

—* 106

In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by
the Government from Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The
purpose of the funding was to provide financial support to enterprises
to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the grant, the Group was required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding
on paying wages to the employees.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 g |

AT ER R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING 5 ZREFECEEEZIRHA
OPERATIONS 18
Loss before taxation from continuing operations is arrived at after REFHESE R 2 BFRAIEBERENRR,
charging/(crediting): GtA) -
2021 2020
—E-—% —ECTE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
(re-presented)
(EHEF)
(a) Finance costs: (a) FIERZ :
Interest on lease liabilities HEEGNE 28 143
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE 1,393 1,685
Interest on other borrowings HhEmA R 35 -
1,456 1,828
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIMZ (BFEEME
remuneration (note 8)): (Ffisk8)) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMBER] 16,126 14,202
Contributions to defined contribution B E R RETEIER
retirement plan 665 522
16,791 14,724
() Other items: (0 HtmER:
Auditor's remuneration 1Z BN & 370 370
Amortisation of intangible assets B BERH - 12,272
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified BCH—REE A%
from equity to profit or loss upon HEREMOEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary RetEREIE - 169
Depreciation of property, ME--BERREITE
plant and equipment 3,409 5,638
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 775 1,984
Expense relating to short-term leases R E 2 BRI 32 144
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE -BREREHE
plant and equipment, net (Ww) H51E 338 (9,274) 887
Impairment losses on: TFER Z REERE
— deposits —¥%% 31 5,000
— trade receivables —FEURBRFR 5,457
Write-off of: THIEE MY -
— deposits and other receivables — ¥ K H i FE R 4,577 =
— intangible assets —EEE 3,680 3,000
— trade receivables —FEURBR R = 1,469

B EERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

6

— 108

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents:

(a) &Z&

TEEBAMZGE

R 7 Z HEE -

2021 2020
B —F b2
HK$’000 HK$'000
THETT FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BNEAMRIB—FEFER
(Over)/under-provision in respect of DEEERE B2 T8
prior years (33) 2
Deferred tax expense/(credit) RIEMIEFME (%)
(note 22(b)) (FFE22(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary EX MBI E R E
differences 1,248 (5,160)
Actual tax expense/(credit) BRRIEFRY  (E%) 1,215 (5,158)
() Hong Kong Profits Tax ) BEFEFR
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for HARESEEMEIIZ B R
2021 (2020: HK$Nil) as the subsidiaries incorporated in IR - —FE B R
Hong Kong have no assessable profits for the year. Miaf WMAFEETRELS
BREKREE  CZ2F
TR ©
(i) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (i)  APEJIEEAEE
The subsidiary incorporated in the People’s Republic of RER RHREARHEM
China (“PRC") are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income (THr ) SEMAL S 2 M @A
Tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) for the year. T AR K25 %N P E 2
FSM (CZ 224 1 25%) ©
No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been HREREEMARLZ HEA
made for 2021 as the subsidiary incorporated in the PRC BN AFE G5 S RIER
have estimated tax losses for the year (2020: HK$Nil). 1B WA ER —F - —FEF 0
Bl EMERELEE CZ
= S van ]
(iij)  Income tax from other tax jurisdictions (i) BEMEmE L8R 2 FF

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the
Group is not subject to income tax in Cayman lIslands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

BB EXBRAZRS

HmRAEH (@

(b) BEFRFAEZHRBRHEZ
(k) BEEETIRZ HR -

2021 2020
—E—F 22 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
(re-presented)
(EHMZ5))
Loss before taxation from REFERSEEE ZBRMRATEE
continuing operations (9,762) (84,710)
Notional tax credit on loss before taxation 1Z2& & AERE+E 2 BRIRAT
at Hong Kong statutory tax rate B AERIERS (1,610) (13,977)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AaI NN Z RS 1,229 6,680
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRI A Z R (545) (651)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AR ARBARIEEE Y
not recognised mETE 1,577 2,762
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ERBFERERNIEREEL
not recognised previously MEE (5) (1,050)
Tax effect of temporary differences B R RRFE R NS
not recognised (944) 776
Write-off of deferred tax assets EH IR IEIRIEE B 1,248 -
Effect of difference tax rates of subsidiaries i B A B TR K 2 52 298 300
(Over)/under-provision in respect of M EEE (B 2
prior years (33) 2
Actual tax expense/(credit) BRRIERS (E%R) 1,215 (5,158)

B EERERAR
E252021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

7

— = 110

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arose from the Money
Lending Business of providing loans in Hong Kong with the money
lenders licence granted under Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) held by AP Finance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Due to keen market competition, and the challenging environment
together with the consideration of the risks associated with the
possible default by the loan borrowers, owing to prolonged impact of
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group did not renew its money lender licence
after the licence expiration on 2 June 2021 and decided to cease the
operation of the Money Lending Business in September 2021.

As the business operation of the Money Lending Business is considered
as a separate major line of business segment of the Group, it is
accounted for as a discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2021. For the purpose of presenting the discontinued
operation of AP Finance in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
its related notes have been re-presented.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= AR =
i E IR M EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)
7 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 7 BRUEKEER @)
2021 2020
—E—F —E2TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T BT
(a) Results of discontinued operation: (a) BARILASEREFFEE
Revenue Wz 773 10,690
Other income, net HAMURAFZE 280 15
Administrative expenses THEX (78,062) (19,082)
Loss from operations KEES1E (77,009) (8,377)
Finance costs BE A A - (68)
Loss before taxation PRIZAIES I8 (77,009) (8,445)
Income tax T8 = -
Loss for the year FEBB (77,009) (8,445)
(b) Loss for the year from discontinued (b) REBARIEEESEHEN
operation is arrived at after FEEFBECNE GIA) -
charging/(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 180 518
Depreciation of property, ME- BB REREITE
plant and equipment 110 378
Expense relating to short-term leases RERTEE 2 B = 790
Impairment loss on loans and R E U F) S RE S
interest receivables 77,714 17,159
(Gainy/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - MENRKE
plant and equipment Wz) 518 (280) 380
Write-off of loans and interest IEEFE W SRR F) B
receivables - 96
(c) Cash flows from discontinued () REBLKRILEEEEEN
operation: HERE !
Net cash (used in)/generated from KRS (FRA) FriE
operating activities, net IR F58 (673) 6,440
Net cash generated from investing BB IS 2 IRE 35
activities 1,550 1,000
Net cash used in financing activities MBEBFTAZIRE B8R (900) (9,868)
(23) (2,428)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)

8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 8 EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBFEFBRABEAIEISESMNE AT (FE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure BEMmER) RTIE28 K GEM_EHFRA
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM FrigE - EEMEWT -

Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind Discretionary bonuses contributions Total
EE Tk e RMRENAG RiETEA BRI 5t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

ZEC-F CZC%F ZEC-F CZC%F ZEC-F TZC%F T CZC%F ZZC-F CRCERF

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr TEn TExn  FAn  TEx  FEm  TEn  FEm  TEn

Present directors REES

Executive directors RITES

Chung Man Lai (note 1) &30 (iaE1) - - 240 71 - - 2 - 242 71

Choi Pun Lap (note 2) EA (MzE2) - - 140 - - - 2 - 142 -

Independent non-executive directors  BIFEHTES

Fu Yan Ming (note 3) TERE (f3E3) 70 - - - - - - - 70 -

Lam Yuen Man Maria (note 4) EZ (Hz4) 120 35 - - - - - - 120 35

Tai Man Tai (note 5) B30 (f155) 15 - - - - - - - 15 -

Former directors AIEES

Executive directors RITES

Chan Kwun Chung (note 6) BEE (i3k6) - - - 333 - 100 - 5 = 438

Chong Cha Hwa (note 7) RERE (fzL7) - - - 103 - - - - - 103

Chow Yik (note 8) B (H58) - - 200 450 - - 1 14 207 464

Ng Kin Man (note 9) RAEX (f129) - - - 417 - 95 - 8 - 520

Sin Pui Ying (note 10) HRE (f10) - - - 169 - - - - - 169

Toui Wing Tak (note 11) KR (1) - - - 369 - - - 11 - 380

Yao Tong (note 12) ki@ (z12) - - - 2 - - - - - 3

Non-executive director FHTES

Zheng Yonggjang (note 13) ks (frs013) - - - 225 - - - - - 225

Independent non-executive directors  HIFEHTES

Chung Man Lai (note 1) e (1) - 55 - - - - - - - 55

Fok Kin Fung Eric (note 13) R (Wzh13) - 120 - - - - - - - 120

Lee G. Lam (note 14) K1 (fi5214) 2 120 - - - - - - 2 120

Leung Man Chun (note 15) 20 (E5) 90 120 - - - - - - 90 120
315 450 580 2,169 - 195 1" 38 906 2,852

2 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB TTEITR)

8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8
Notes:
1. Appointed as independent non-executive director on 1 April 2020 and

re-designated as executive director on 15 September 2020.

2. Appointed on 1 June 2021.

3. Appointed on 31 May 2021.

4. Appointed on 15 September 2020.
5. Appointed on 1 October 2021.

6. Resigned on 1 April 2020.

7. Appointed on 14 October 2020 and resigned on 14 April 2021.

8. Appointed on 1 April 2020 and resigned on 1 June 2021.

9. Resigned on 11 May 2020.
10.  Resigned on 15 September 2020.

1. Appointed on 28 April 2020 and resigned on 3 December 2020.

12. Appointed on 7 December 2020 and resigned on 27 May 2021.

13. Resigned on 1 January 2021.
14. Resigned on 1 March 2021.

15. Resigned on 1 October 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors and chief operating decision-
maker as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors waived any
emoluments during the year (2020: HK$NIil).

EEM=E (B

PEE

1. RIB_ZFNA—HESERBIIER
TESEER_Z2-Z2FNBTHEARES
BITES-

2. N2 —FA—HEZE-

3. RIB_—FRA=+—RHEZE-

4. RZZ-ZFHAB+HBESZE-

5. N2 —F+A—HEZE-

6. RIB-ZENA—HEHE-

7. RIZZZ2F+E+HHEZERRZE
——FNA+MHBARE-

8. RIZE_ZFNME—HEZERNR_-ZF
——HFRBE—H##E

9. R-E_EERF+—HEH T
10. RIZTZFAA+AHE T

1. RIZEZTZEFERBEZ+N\HEZERRZ
ToBEF_H=HEH o

12. RIBE-ZE+_AtHEZERKIE
T —ERA+tHEEF

13. RIZZT—F—F—HEEe
14, RIBE-_—F=F—HEFE-

15. RIZE-—F+A—HET-

BHE_Z_—GFR-ZE-ZEEFE+A
=t+—HUEFE mEEMERES KT
BEEBEAREZNNE  FANMARER
FMAKEB BRI ERI SRR AE -
s BmEERFRARETAME C2

SEE I BH) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A e SRR M EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CLBTTHITR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of the five
highest emoluments are directors (2020: one) whose emolument is
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
these five individuals (2020: four) are as follows:

REHMAL
REZBBHFIALET BREELR
BHMALTLRES (CS2BF —
) TEE 2B SR SRS 2
(CE-BE W) EHALZHERE
mF

—= 114

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Salaries and other emoluments e R EME & 2,715 2,668
Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL - -
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEIMHERR 86 72
2,801 2,740

The emoluments of the five individuals (2020: four) with the highest h (CEZEEFE  OR) ReiiZ @3]

emoluments are within the following band: AT ZBENFUTEHE :

2021 2020
—E-—F TETEF
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEE A BEAH
HK$Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 FHITE1,000,00078 7T 5 4

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the individuals with highest emoluments of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kn e MBS IR R MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
10 LOSS PER SHARE 10 Sk
(a) Basic loss per share (a) SREZLXER
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the following BREXABENEUTEARABDEE
loss attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted ANELEEHERFRNBEREITESR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. f& 2 IR I98GTE ©
2021 2020
B —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(re-presented)
E#Z5))
Loss for the year attributable to owners AT #HHE AL EEEE
of the Company
— From continuing operations —REFELEER 6,328 63,166
— From discontinued operation —REEAIEREER 77,009 8,445
83,337 71,611
2021 2020
& ZEIZE
Number of Number of
shares shares
e E (R LE 4=
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary FABETEBR ZMEFHH
shares in issue during the year 1,272,640 1,272,640
(b) Diluted loss per share (b)) HREEEIR
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December ARBEEAETEEERTER
2021 and 2020 is the same as the basic loss per share as there B EBEZE_—FRIZIERF
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue. +ZA=+—HUEFEZESREE

BHREgREAEIERAR-

B EERERAR 15 ————
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
e 3

CLBTTHITR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— @ 116

RAFS R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 ME- -BERRE

Furniture ~ Computers
Land and Leasehold and and other Motor
buildings  improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
EE)d
TiRET HEMELE GAREE Hitak s RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TET TET
Cost i
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ2H—F—H 49,484 3,342 3,469 1,578 5,887 63,760
Additions "B - 221 75 29 1,530 1,855
Disposals HE - (1,258) (2,559) @ (2,638) (6,459)
Exchange adjustments SMERE - - 1 ) - (1)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—-8k
“Z-F-F-H 49,484 2,305 986 1,601 4,779 59,155
Additions RE - = 27 107 - 134
Disposals HE (49,484) (2,038) (721) (392) @,779) (57,414)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—%F
+ZB=+—H - 267 292 1316 - 1,875
Accumulated depreciation ZEHrE
At 1 January 2020 RIZ2ZZF—F—H 14,777 3,033 1,864 1,405 1318 22,397
Charge for the year AEENR 4,124 269 49 97 1,030 6,016
Eliminated on disposals T E R - (1,258) (1,532) @ (1,258) (4,052)
Exchange adjustments SMEEREE - - - ) - )
At 31 December 2020 and RIZZ2E
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—-8k
Z-F-F-H 18,901 2,044 828 1,49 1,090 24,359
Charge for the year AEENG 2,983 146 77 86 227 3,519
Eliminated on disposals R E R (21,884) (2,004) (682) (384) (1,317) (26,271)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—&
+-B=+-H - 186 223 1,198 = 1,607
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—%F
+-B=+—-A8 - 81 69 118 = 268
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE
+-A=t—H 30,583 261 158 105 3,689 34,796

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kn e MBS IR R MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME- -BEKRKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no pledged assets as a result RN _E - —F+_A=+—H > KEET
of the settlement of bank borrowings in note 20 during the year. R AN E B A BN 202 R TERIRIRE
Eo
As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged its land and buildings R_E-_SF+_B=+—H &A&EH
and a motor vehicle with carrying amounts of HK$30,583,000 and B9 RE R E {3 430,583,000 7T &
HK$1,326,000 respectively to secure interest-bearing borrowings 1,326,0008 710~ T R IEF A K —EiSE
granted to the Group (see note 20). DIFERAEEEZE R W EER (BRI
$$20) ©
The Group's land and buildings at 31 December 2020 were all situated RN_E_EF+_BA=+—RH > xEEZ
in Hong Kong under medium-term leases. THREFHURES UFBEHEER
ﬁo

B EERERAR 17 ——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ir e MR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEE
Development Mobile
costs games Total
FE RS FHBER #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET FHET
Cost 57N
At 1 January 2020 N_ZZF—HF—H 3,000 69,783 72,783
Additions //J\% 2,760 - 2,760
Write-off (note (c)) s (MyEE(o) (3,000) - (3,000)
At 31 December 2020 and Ef_7_7¢+ B=+—H
1 January 2021 rR_E_—%F—H—H 2,760 69,783 72,543
Additions =1 920 - 920
Write-off (note (c)) s (5EC) (3,680) - (3,680)
At 31 December 2021 N_Z_—F+ZHA=+—H - 69,783 69,783
Accumulated amortisation and Rt KR E
impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZZ2F—HF—H - 38,508 38,508
Charge for the year REEIR - 12,272 12,272
Impairment loss (note (d)) BUERTE (15Ed)) - 19,003 19,003
At 31 December 2020, RIZZEHF
1 January 2021 and +=ZB=+—H8"-
31 December 2021 2 —HF—HA—HRK
—E—HF+”"“B=+—H - 69,783 69,783
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2021 KRB —F+-A=+—H - = =
At 31 December 2020 N_Z2ZF+"A=+—H 2,760 - 2,760
(a) Development costs (@) FZEmZE
Development costs represent expenditure incurred for developing B AL A TSR S B M F I E AR
website and mobile applications that have been recognised in AMELXZHY  BRBZERE
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(g) and BTBER ERMIEE2(g) BRI A
are internally generated. EREELE o
——o 118 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A H
RS

AT ER R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CLBETTS

)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

()

(c)

(d)

Amortisation

The amortisation charges of mobile games for the year ended 31
December 2020 were included in “Administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

No amortisation charge of development costs was recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as
the intangible assets were not yet available for use up to 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Write-off

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group re-
assessed the diminishing return regarding the development costs
capitalised for website development project and decided to
suspend its project development in view of taking consideration
into the expected fierce competition of market demand for the
website development in the foreseeable future. As a result, the
Group decided to write off the capitalised development costs
and its carrying amount of HK$3,680,000 was written off in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group decided
to write off the development costs of mobile applications
in view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic which
caused further uncertainties in the Group’s developments
in mobile applications. As a result, the carrying amount of
the development cost of HK$3,000,000 was written off in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Impairment loss

On 31 December 2020, the management realised that the
performance of mobile games and applications segment was
worse than expected due to the tough economic environment
and strong market competition. After the assessment on the
respective date, the management determined to recognise
an impairment loss of HK$19,003,000 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

12 BREE (8)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HE_Z-_ZE+"_HF=+—HL
FEE FRERBHBAIEHALL
HHEEKRNZITERS] -

REE_Z-_—EFR-_Z°ZF
+ZRA=+—HILFER I EE
DHERABERS RREHEHE
TE I FERIEFEZIEZEFETA
=t+—BZERPEERTHFER-

REEE-Z-_—F+"A=+—H
IEFE AEBMEHT AL E
HEMREREAB @D Z2ERG
BB ORTHEEBEERE LR
ZEEIN A8 R AR R AR 5
TRBGHMINFEF AL > REER
EMHE AR ERA  HEREE
3,680,000/ T AR & 18w R R 1T
sz I Paiies o

REEZ_Z-ZF+"A=+—H
LEFEE ERCOVID-19% 1B IR E
BAEBEFHREAREAREFTEE
LAMEM  NEBRTEMEFH
FERRRE A - AL > BREE A A
BREI{E3,000,0008 T ir BB X
FRATERA S AU S o

R
RZZ2ZZF+-A=+—H"8
BEERABRRESNRERIERT
BE R FH IR & E R DB
ZEELLTERE - R AR B IS
B BEEBAENGGERRER
BERS5$819,003,00078 7T
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13 GOODWILL 13 BE
Mobile
Software games and
platform applications Total
FHBEE
BmHETae R FER 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT FHETT THTT
Cost 5
At 1 January 2020, WoE—E:FE—H—H-
31 December 2020, [ - = R N
1 January 2021 and e =
31 December 2021 —F=——F—A ?EZ
2T —F+ZRA=+—H 20,236 89,433 109,669
Accumulated impairment B EE
At 1 January 2020 RWZZ2ZZEF—HF—H - 69,878 69,878
Impairment loss BEEE - 19,555 19,555
At 31 December 2020, R =
1 January 2021 and +=—B=4+—8-
31 December 2021
2 —4%—AF—Bk
“E—HF+ZHA=+—H - 89,433 89,433
Carrying amount BEE (&
At 31 December 2021 and 2020 R R-EEF
+—-B=+—H 20,236 - 20,236

Annual Report 2021

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kn e MBS IR R MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

13 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 13 BHE (@)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs")
identified according to country of operation and operating segment as

follows:

BEDEEFEBRBEEMERRRE
BENMHEReELEM (REELSE
i) - SFIBWTF -

2021 2020
B —F 2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Software platform — Hong Kong HUTa—5E ((HHTEE)

(“Software Platform”) 20,236 20,236

Mobile games and applications — Hong Kong -3 55 & e B — &35 (TSR35 )
(“Mobile Games”) - -
20,236 20,236

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwiill

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as follows:

Software Platform

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-
in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes the
discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 16.5% (2020: 17.0%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2020: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the market.

EEBEZHEELEMZHER
g

EXEREEB G ERFE6REER
BEIEEEEZREE TR :

EMtFE

e EE BN A RO BIRERAER
FREEZFEET BEXEEEER
HERER FRB M BFERE 2 BRI
e Uk RRIBR™ S H G B REE
BzHERREEEEEUSERBZIRET
BRIREK49165% (T _F4F 1 17.0%) ©

REEHEZREREBIENRREEE
HEKXERERBEZTR 2GR E
H-BBAREHBSRECHARBES
BMER3I0% (CE_TFE 13.0%) HEH %
WEERNBBHH BT ER.
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E252021

121 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V=P:

e 3

RAFS R R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CLBTTHITR)

13
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Software Platform (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the CGU
are as follows:

Budgeted
market share

The values assigned to the assumption reflect
past experience, except for the growth
factor, which is consistent with the directors’
estimation of the revenue from existing and
potential customers. The directors believe that
planned revenue growth per year for the next
five years is reasonably achievable.

Number of service In order to maintain successive business
contracts operations of the CGU, the directors believe
that there is no particular difficulty in renewal
of the service contracts of the existing
customers in the CGU.

The directors and the management have performed sensitivity
analysis and believed that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

Based on the results for the aforesaid impairment assessments, the
directors concluded that no provision for impairment on goodwill
regarding the Software Platform has to be recognised as of
31 December 2021.

Mobile Games

The CGU of Mobile Games has been fully impaired since the year
ended 31 December 2020 in view of the deterioration in revenue level
and poor operating results of the CGU in the prior years and economic

environment in Hong Kong.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e MR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

14 FREESE

Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEYE _E #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T FHET FHET
Cost 7%
At 1 January 2020 N_ZZF—F—H 2,625 3,394 6,019
Adjustment as a result of early FiEAI & LT EMmAEE
termination of leases (632) - (632)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - (3,394) (3,394)
Disposals HE (442) - (442)
Exchange adjustments HMEESHEE 4 - 4
At 31 December 2020 and N ZEIERE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—H8BK
- —F—HF—H 1,555 - 1,555
Additions wE 1,488 - 1,488
Disposals HE (1,556) - (1,556)
Exchange adjustments HMEESHEE 1 - 1
At 31 December 2021 A2 —F+"A=+—H 1,488 - 1,488
Accumulated depreciation EEtinE
At 1 January 2020 RoE-mE—A—BH 820 1,096 1,916
Charge for the year REEIFR 980 1,004 1,984
Adjustment as a result of early Riepi4& EFAEMmAZE
termination of leases (332) - (332)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - (2,100) (2,100)
Eliminated on disposals R E R (442) - (442)
Exchange adjustments HMEESHEE 1 - 1
At 31 December 2020 and A
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—Hk
- —%—H—H 1,027 - 1,027
Charge for the year REENR 775 - 775
Eliminated on disposals P R 8 (1,556) = (1,556)
Exchange adjustments SN EESHEL 2 - 2
At 31 December 2021 RZ2_—F+-B=+—8H 248 - 248
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZIEZ—F+Z“HA=+—H 1,240 - 1,240
At 31 December 2020 WZ_E2_ZF+_F=+—H 528 - 528

B EERERAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

15

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14 EREEE (@)
The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties as its office AEEDEBEERRESETWE S
premises through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an AREAERAEYE -ZSHEREA
initial period of 2 years (2020: 2 to 3 years). None of the leases include HZHFCEIZF . ZE=9F) - ZEHE
variable lease payments. BB SR EEEIRC
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows IAGFERERERNSEBRIELE LR
comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$32,000 and HK$787,000 EEFHTMNEERSRE > 9 51%432,000
(2020: HK$934,000 and HK$1,687,000) in operating and financing B0 52787,00078 70 (ZZE ZZ 4 © 934,000
activities respectively. 7T R21,687,000787T) °
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 21. HEBBZHARDMEEBEHN 21
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FEUREBRFR R E fth FE U TR
2021 2020
—E-—% —ECoTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Gross amount of trade receivables FEUL AR TR 4858 5,537 7,641
Less: loss allowance B EIREE (3,958) (5,554)
1,579 2,087
Deposits and other receivables & R E M EWER 2,366 5,228
Prepayments FETIR 1,290 6,455
5,235 13,770

—* 124

All of the Group's trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits and prepayments of HK$216,000 (2020: HK$3,311,000), are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kn e MBS IR R MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB TTHIR)
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FEURERFR R HLMthFE UL R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis RE 2T
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HERSHR BURSIBEEZERRK
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as HREBIEEE ZRE DO ©
follows:
2021 2020
—E—%F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month DR—1E A 762 676
More than 1 but less than 3 months BE—EaEL LK =@ 743 694
More than 3 but less than 6 months BE=1E BB LR NER 71 301
More than 6 but less than 12 months BN Ea e+ @A 3 416
1,579 2,087
Further details on the Group'’s credit policy and credit risk arising from REBEEREUREREREEZEFE
trade receivables are set out in note 26(a). Rbe 2 BZEEIBE M EE26(a)
16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 16 BUKERRFIS
The Group’s loans and interest receivables arose from the Money N_E2_—FNA AEEENEERE
Lending Business which has been classified as discontinued operation T RBERRFEENEABRIERE
in September 2021 as a result of the Group's decision to cease the (B REAREERRERIHEE-A
operation. Further details on the discontinued operation are set out in R IR EEBNE L RHN W7 o
note 7.
2021 2020
ET-F “ZCTE
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREs FSBS st BRED HEEHD 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER FTER FER FET FET
Secured loans by mortgage RBIEEER 5,000 298 5,298 5,000 5,000
Personal guaranteed loans BARRER 47,300 4,589 51,889 48,178 4,733 52,911
Unsecured loans BIERER 42,166 5,360 47,526 42,167 4,779 46,946
94,466 10,247 104,713 95,345 9,512 104,857
Less: loss allowance A BEEE (89,558) (10,247) (99,805) (18,735) (3,356) (22,091)
4,908 - 4,908 76,610 6,156 82,766

Loans receivable were interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10.0% to
58.9% (2020: 10.0% to 58.9%) per annum and repayable on maturity
dates under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in
writing by the Group.

RN E TR ENENF10.0%E58.9% (Z
EBTEF :10.0%E58.9%) 5t THAK
EERIBAREERBRENNIZERT

EREE-

B EERERAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis was prepared based on contractual due date:

16

EWEMRRHE (@)

RieDIRBESRZIARRER

2021 2020

—EZ-& ZZITE

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
e Gl a5t B35S 825 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THET FHET FHET FHET
Current (not past due) RE CRAE) - - 67,095 2,822 69,917
Less than 3 months past due BELR=ER - - - 1,626 1,626
3 to 6 months past due AH=FEA - - 1,507 566 2,073
Over 6 months past due wEER ML 4,908 4,908 8,008 1,142 9,150
4,908 4,908 76,610 6,156 82,766

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are neither past

due nor impaired was assessed by reference to historical information

about counterparties’ default rates.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 26(a).

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

— o 126

and on hand

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted
to HK$1,000 (2020: HK$679,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 RERBESEEYREMR

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREBEH (@)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) EfEZEELZEELHR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from TRHEFAEERBMEGTHN 28
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BE (BIFReRIFRSEE) 5%
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which B BMEGTHELZEEREHR
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ERBHRKRERERTHEER
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from FERERERPHEARE LD
financing activities. RSz RERE8zaEe.
Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
Mt B AERR HE&SE Mzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(note 20) (note 21)
(H35£20) (FysE21)
At 1 January 2020 RZE-E5—HA—H 40,266 3,991 44,257
Changes from financing MEEHREREEE .
cash flows:
Capital element of lease ENHEEREZ ARSI
rentals paid - (1,687) (1,687)
Interest element of lease BfHEREZFEED
rentals paid - (143) (143)
Interest paid [SENEES (1,753) - (1,753)
Loan repayment to a third party ~ [A—% % =S EEEMR (1,000) - (1,000)
New loans from third parties KEE=ZFHZHMER 1,900 - 1,900
Repayment of bank loans EZIR1TER (4,106) - (4,106)
(4,959) (1,830) (6,789)
Other changes: H{th &g .
Adjustment as a result of early FZRT#A IEFRE M AT
termination of leases - (316) (316)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(c)) HEMIEAE (FiEE29(c)) - (1,443) (1,443)
Interest expenses MEMZ 1,753 143 1,896
Exchange adjustments SNEEFHEE = (2) ()
1,753 (1,618) 135
At 31 December 2020 R
+—-B=+—H 37,060 543 37,603
HAFREEBRAR 1278 S
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

17 RERREFEYREMIRA
EREEF (B)
(b) EREZBELZABHE

—— o 128

activities (Continued) (#)
Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
PSR EEN HE&E st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAET
(note 20) (note 21)
(Ft&£20) (PFfFsE21)
At 1 January 2021 m-E-_—£—B—8 37,060 543 37,603
Changes from financing RMEESRERELE
cash flows:
Capital element of lease BNHEREEZ RS
rentals paid - (787) (787)
Interest element of lease BENHEERSZHEE D
rentals paid - (28) (28)
Interest paid B E (1,428) - (1,428)
New loans from a third party KE—RE=ZFZHER 908 - 908
Repayment of bank loans EIRIRITENR (37,060) = (37,060)
(37,580) (815) (38,395)
Other changes: Hith & .
Increase in lease liabilities from FIAUMEEEES
entering into new leases HE&aEEN - 1,488 1,488
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) B (MI5E5(a)) 1,428 28 1,456
1,428 1,516 2,944
At 31 December 2021 WZE_—%
+=-A=+—H 908 1,244 2,152

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 FE{TARFR R ELfth & (3K
2021 2020
—E-—f it St .3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade payables FETBR X - 1,446
Accrued charges and other payables FESTE A & EAFE TR 1,992 1,756
1,992 3,202

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year
or repayable on demand.

Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following ageing
analysis, based on the invoice date, as of the end of the reporting
period:

FT B P BR AR EL M (I R FRER R e —

WBEIIZERER

REE R A ARMERRHNENE SR

ER R G R IRE AT T

2021
B —F
HK$'000
FHET

2020

B CEE

==

HK$'000

THETT

Within 1 month —@EE RN

1,446
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iR e MR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CLBTTHITR)

19 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 19

These represent billings in advance of performance under IT service

contracts with customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the service commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract until the
revenue recognised on the project exceeds the amount of the deposits.
The Group typically receives a certain deposit, which is negotiated
on case by case basis with customers, on acceptance of IT service

[ | JI’J§13
ZETERRE R 2 EARRE S
AT EAITREWRRIA

A LB IRE MR WERE AR
TERGHNRERELESNER BEEA
FEEEDNEERREEERIE - E
H—-REWEETRE AR EER
B RB AR REEN B RRES

contracts. F e
2021 2020
—B_—F —E2TE2F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January w—BA—H 3,830 5,196
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ EAREERRBR ZWE T AR EN Z
recognising revenue during the year that eHaRERaNaERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (2,210) (4,297)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~ AR BB ERBFENE NELTE
billing in advance of performance under IT  WWFUIBEE &4 & EEMN
service contracts 21,035 19,037
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ FARTEF AR & & EHERE
recognising revenue in respect of the new  W@EEBRGHE G/
contract liabilities entitled during the year (18,003) (16,106)
At 31 December R+—_B=+—H 4,652 3,830
The amount of billings in advance of performance expected to be FEHRRR A —FERIANEZBOTRE

recognised as revenue after more than one year is HK$ 134,000 (2020:
HK$226,000).

——— = 130 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
20 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20 MIBMER
The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable within one year or on WMEERER—FREENREREE
demand (including those with repayable on demand clause). (BIERBEREREBEBRRZMEBR)
2021 2020
—E—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank loans RITEM - 36,160
Loan from a third party KEB—RE=ZFZ2EXR 908 900
9208 37,060
The maturity of interest-bearing borrowings, based on the scheduled M EERERERGEMMETE H#A
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, is as follows: ZHABRUOH ¢
2021 2020
—B—F “BTEBF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 908 15,214
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA = 1,776
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERFERN = 2,849
More than 5 years HEM - 17,221
908 37,060
Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note NEREZ FZRIERF BRI MHIEE26(0) °
26(c).
The interest-bearing borrowings at 31 December 2021 were B —HFF+"A=+—HZWERER
unsecured. AEEILIR
The interest-bearing borrowings at 31 December 2020 were secured N _ECEEF_A=+—HZHWERER
by the Group’s land and buildings and a motor vehicle with carrying A& EARE(E 29 51 4930,583,00048 70 K
amounts of HK$30,583,000 and HK$1,326,000 respectively and a 1,326,000 5t 2 T # K i F K — 895 B2
corporate guarantee from the Company and a subsidiary. MR A —EN B AT Z A BERE
e
Bt EERFRAR B —

E252021
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UABTTHIR)
21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HE&R
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRENAERHESBEZRHGRELH
Group's lease liabilities: R :
2021 2020
ZEZ—F “EIERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 734 543
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBREMEFER 510 -
1,244 543
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 HREMBRRARZAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current tax payable in the consolidated (a) #HEHBMKAEXZETRIA
statement of financial position represents: RIELS -
2021 2020
—E-—F _EFHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance of profits tax provision relating to WX & E 2 F1SR B E LR
prior years - 53

132 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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kn e MBS IR R MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B TTHImR)
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 GRERBRARZFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION =)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) BEZBZEEHREESE &
&
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RiFE M BAR R RER 2 IRERIE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BHE/ (80 BORERNEHZT]
movements during the year are as follows: W
Fair value
Tax allowance adjustment
in excess of on
Deferred tax assets/ Tax  the related intangible
(liabilities) arising from: losses amortisation assets Total
3B E R BREE
#iHz ZRATE
BERELE (B8R E£8: RIERE IR HE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHETT FET
At 1 January 2020 NZZ2ZZF—HF—H 1,248 (497) (4,663) (3,912)
Credited to profit or loss RE@mEtA - 497 4,663 5,160
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZZE
1 January 2021 +ZB=+—HB&
- ——F—H 1,248 - - 1,248
Charged to profit or loss P8 i0kk (1,248) - - (1,248)
At 31 December 2021 GRS 2
+ZB=+—H - - - _
Bt EERFRAR 133 .
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22

)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$78,315,000 (2020: HK$97,903,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately
HK$Nil (2020: HK$7,565,000). The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of the remaining tax losses of
approximately HK$78,315,000 (2020: HK$90,338,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Of the total
unrecognised tax losses, HK$2,969,000 (2020: HK$1,658,000)
will expire within 5 years and the remaining tax losses of
HK$75,346,000 (2020: HK$88,680,000) have no expiry date
under the current tax legislation. Other temporary differences are
not material.

23 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF

—* 134

Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed

under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The

MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered

by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer

and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of

monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest

immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

2 REMBIKRRZARFPR

nﬁ

(€ HEXBRZEBEERBEE ~
BE
NZEZ—F+ZB=+—H"%&
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23

24

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the relevant
local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic salary
of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
in respect of the retirement of its employees.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the eligible
participants including any employees, directors, suppliers, consultants,
agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion of the board
of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and motivate their
contributions to the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the definition
of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option Scheme

(" Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

23

24
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

— 136

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of the
Company, the maximum number of shares available for subscription
under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i) The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of its
issued share capital from time to time; and

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under Amendments to the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of the approval of Amendments to the New Share
Option Scheme/at the date of passing the relevant resolution in
general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general meeting
of the Company.

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the proposed grantee of the options).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration for a grant
of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board of
directors providing that the price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the offer, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares on GEM
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

The total number of share options that could be granted was limited
to 127,264,000 shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing
approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the Company on the
date of passing the resolution to refresh the New Share Option Scheme
limit at the annual general meeting on 25 June 2018.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

24
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25 BXRRkf#E
(a) Share capital (@) k&
Authorised and issued share capital EER BEITR K
Number of
shares Amount
RPEE &%
'000 HK$'000
T8 FHBTT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares ZiEL
At 31 December 2021 and NI —FR_B_FF
2020 of HK$0.04 each +-B=+—H
SREEC.04E T 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
Ordinary shares ZiEk
At 31 December 2021 and N _E - —FR_EEE
2020 of HK$0.04 each +ZB=+—H
S EE0.0478 T 1,272,640 50,906

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1) Share premium
Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution from
shareholders in the form of interest-free loans. The
amounts are estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interest-bearing loans to the Group at current
market interest rate for similar financial instruments.
An early repayment of interest-free loans represents a
reduction in contribution from shareholders and reduces
capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company and
the Group's former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(t).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the net impact between (i)
the excess of the consideration received for the disposal
of 20% equity interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
over the increase in the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests of HK$Nil (2020: HK$3,000); and (ii)
the excess of cash consideration paid for acquisition of
additional interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries over
the increase in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests of HK$102,000 (2020: HK$418,000) in prior
years.
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

—* 140

(9]

(d)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments as to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the recommendation
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil
(2020: HK$20,733,000).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of credit
risk as 9% (2020: 16%) and 38% (2020: 50%) of total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer and five largest
customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account
the customer’s past payment history, financial position and other
factors. Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the billing
date.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUAETTHITR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BEEREERRESRTAA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEERE (8B)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () JEUTERE (&

TRIRHARAEEFERER
M EHEERERZEEE

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

——* 142

receivables: bR TEHAE BB ER .
2021
ZEZ-&

Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

BEE AREAEME B IR AREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
Current (not past due) e CRiEEn) 1.08% 770 (8) 762
Less than 1 month past due BE O R—@EA 1.17% 474 (6) 468
1 to 3 months past due BH—E=EA 1.28% 347 (4) 343
3 to 6 months past due BR=ZRER 1.44% 3 —* 3
6 to 12 months past due BHRAET MBS 1.90% 3 =% 3
More than 12 months past due B+ EAMUL 100.00% 3,940 (3,940) -
5,537 (3,958) 1,579
2020

TRCTE
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

BT

EisES IREAEE B IREFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET FAT

Current (not past due) TE) CRaen) 3.20% 699 (22) 677
Less than 1 month past due wE O R—EA 3.40% 585 (20) 565
1 to 3 months past due AH—E=EA 3.94% 432 (17) 415
3 to 6 months past due BR=ZE8 4.53% 375 (17) 358
6 to 12 months past due AHAET_ER 98.15% 3,950 (3,878) 72
More than 12 months past due A+ _ER ML 100.00% 1,600 (1,600) =
7,641 (5,554) 2,087

* Below HK$1,000.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEERE (8B)
() Trade receivables (Continued) () EWERF (&
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience TERRES IE IR B A F E BN E
in current year. These rates are adjusted to reflect BEBREH ZFLEE/EE
differences between economic conditions during the FAE - UM EEFEFEE
period over which the historic data has been collected, AR Z BRI BRI
current conditions and the Group's view of forward- e AR S B R UGN 2 TERR £
looking economic conditions over the expected lives of the NZBIEESERRZERZ
receivables. BlzZEREo
Movements in loss allowance in respect of trade FEUR AR Fh 2 BB B 2 8 il
receivables are as follows: ™
Trade Contract
receivables assets Total
FE U BR =R BHNEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TR
At 1 January 2020 BoE-=gFE—B—A 118 10 128
Transfer B 10 (10) -
Amounts written off as uncollectible £ % Uk [2] 5 il #5718 (31 - (€1))
Impairment losses recognised BRERERE 5,457 - 5,457
At 31 December 2020 and =
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HBk
2T —%—-A—-H 5,554 - 5,554
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (1,600) S (1,600)
Impairment losses recognised BREARERE 4 > 4
At 31 December 2021 S
+-RA=+—H 3,958 - 3,958

No significant changes to estimation techniques or

REEHRB > A5t EHRR
BEHIRERES) -

assumptions were made during the reporting period.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of an asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.

kR AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)~ Loans and interest receivables (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s

ECL model for the loans and interest receivables is as

follows:

Category
il

Definition of category

FHES

26 BREGEERESRTAA

FE (&)

(a) 1EEEE (&)
(i) ERESRFIE (&)

FEBERRBRERRMNEZ
FRHEEBRENREZR

RIEEWMT

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

FHEEEERE L RREE

Stage 1

5 1PEER

Stage 2

SE2PEER

Stage 3

EB3MEER

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

EE R B MR LR E R B IR ARIE
MERELEBIRHREEREZ AR

Exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit-impaired.
=& R B B LR IR ARG e
TR EIREEREZ R

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

HEERZEEZ M RRRERELES
MEEBZ -BNZTEREEMN ARRTES
HIREERE-

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

HESRERR+ —EANEEENEMFZA
FENEARRE Z 2 ITRHIE IR AR 7 o

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

WREHERGE A RMEBETEmEE
ZOIEREHR) o

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

M50 2 BATR RS 18 31 /8 A B PR A =1L 1 8
PR (0 FR#EH) MIFRRMARE MU EF R

Wzt o

B EERERAR
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

—* 146

(ir)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables and
loans and interest receivables are set out in notes 15 and
16 respectively.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 26% and 51% (2020: 26% and
51%) of the Group's loans receivable balance respectively
as at 31 December 2021.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Up to the date of discontinued operation of the Money
Lending Business as detailed in note 7, the Group rebutted
the presumption of default under ECL model for loans
and interest receivables over 90 days past due based on
continuous business with the Group. They were assessed
individually based on their probability of default and
exposure of default with reference to historical credit
loss experience, adjusted by current and forward-looking
factors.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

26

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (8)

(a) 1EEEE (&)

(i)

[ENEFRFE ()

BRI EBEREMBRTRA KR
FEWERRFEMEAZZEE
BB 23— BUR IR TR 2 Bl H
RHIEE15516°

EFRABAHNAIARELZ
BRDIMERERP T = —
F+_A=+—HZEKRER
BREEAI26% K51% (ZE-F
£ 1 26%551%) ©

EFBRBBEREEZEE
REBRAME 2R m (M5
E) MBAZEREE AEETE
REESAEEERNEERR
ZAEFHER

BERIECEREXESBH
FFRMIEE7) - B AL
FEETER AEETHER
EHRBIBO0H 2 R E TR A
BREHEEEERATEE
WZ IR MIREHEEQRSE
MRENRR  E2EBER
BEBEgE WIRA KRATE
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(CONTINUED)

(ir)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 MBEMEEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (&)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEERE (8B)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) (i) [EWEZRFE #)
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest RN B RH B 2 SR
receivables are as follows: W
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIER FMEER FIMER 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FER FET FiER
At 1 January 2020 W-2-%£-A—-H 113,347 3,688 - 117,035
New originated MEE 15,811 29 - 15,840
Transfer CEbe (34,604) 34,604 - -
Transfer as consideration of asset ~ ERE(EBE B R E*
acquisition® (1,530) - - (1,530)
Repaid during the year RERERER (26,242) (150) = (26,392)
Write off b6} - (96) - (96)
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZZF
1 January 2021 +ZA=T—Hk
2" —%—F—H 66,782 38,075 - 104,857
New originated WMEL 381 392 - 773
Transfer B (66,863) 66,863 - -
Repaid during the year RENEE (300) (617) - (917)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F
+-RA=+—-H - 104,713 - 104,713
By class at 31 December 2021 BAOBEY RIZZ—F
+ZRA=+-H
— Loans receivable —EWER - 94,466 - 94,466
— Interest receivables —FEUF B - 10,247 - 10,247
- 104,713 - 104,713
By class at 31 December 2020 BABEEI R_B_2F
+=-A=+-A
— Loans receivable —ElEmR 64,829 30,516 = 95,345
— Interest receivables —EWFE 1,953 7,559 = 9,512
66,782 38,075 - 104,857
& On 28 April 2020, the Group acquired a motor vehicle & RZZ2EZZ2FWMBZ+HN

of HK$1,530,000 from its loan borrower in which the
consideration was satisfied by loans and interest receivables and
constituted a non-cash transaction.

BRTERERERAR

B -AEBEBEHEERBERA
BEMEE,530,0008 M
—mRE REUBKRER
EFAESZMEERIFREER
%o
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 HEEAKBEEREMITAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (@
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EEERE (&)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (Continued) (i) EWEZRFE #)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL TR BB E 2 &)
allowances is as follows: DA
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIREER FAMER E3MEER fst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RIE-_ZF—HF—H 1,244 3,688 - 4,932
New originated MEE 296 29 - 325
Transfer to lifetime ECLs BEZRHREENEZ
not credit-impaired SHRBEEHR (198) 198 - -
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRRKEZ BEREFER
exposures transferred between BEIEEEEZRE
stages during the year - 16,834 - 16,834
At 31 December 2020 and T
1 January 2021 ‘I—_ﬂ_+ Hx
2" —%—F—H 1,342 20,749 - 22,091
New originated HMES 198 14,633 - 14,831
Transfer to lifetime ECLs HEZRHREENEZ
not credit-impaired 2HIBHEEEE (1,540) 1,540 - -
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRAERE BEEHERX
exposures transferred between BHEEREZEE
stages during the year - 62,883 - 62,883
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
+ZH=1+—H - 99,805 - 99,805
By class at 31 December 2021 BAOBEY RIZZ—F
+_HE+—E
— Loans receivable —RIRE™M - 89,558 - 89,558
~ Interest receivables —EWF S - 10,247 - 10,247
- 99,805 - 99,805
By class at 31 December 2020  HAEEF N-ZT-ZHF
+ZA=+—H
— Loans receivable —EWER 1,338 17,397 = 18,735
— Interest receivables —EWFE 4 3,352 = 3,356
1,342 20,749 - 22,091

No significant changes to estimation techniques or

assumptions were made during the reporting period.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEERE (8B)
(i)~ Other financial assets at amortised cost (i) IR A TR A=
AEE
Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash PR AT AR 2 HAth SR E
and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables. EORERERIREEEY 12
The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately S REMEW - AEEFEB
providing for expected credit losses on a timely KR IBREERBIEREE TR
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, BE UBREEERBRAK-
the Group considers historical loss rates for each RErBEAEEHBXE &
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking EEeETESBRIR 2B
macroeconomic data. BB W RLAIEM R
HIREHAE -
(b) Liquidity risk (b) BB ZREE
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEBEREESEEBREEEELRS
for their own cash management, including the short-term ZHRER QERERGZAH
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover RERIBMERUENLERRESE
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly BoREBRZBERTEHEZEER
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains FESHR UBRFREFZERE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of HEMEBHEEES UENMHE
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer HARERRBEEER
term.
HAFREEBRAR P —
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— 150

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities

at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial

liabilities, which is based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

(including interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting

period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

MHEREERERMIAR
FE (8)

(b) FEEZmE (&)

TRITAERBZEMEBNRS
HRZEBRTEINIHE HERE
SIMARMRRENE (BEERTY
MERFHEZMEMAR HMAHFE
ARBRERRZRTAEFE) U
RAEEPERERNTRZRFR
HA:

2021

B —fF
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years
BETARIER  —FEREIH LH—F
IREE RERENE HIFRER ELREE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FTHERT FTHET
Trade and other payables AT AR RS ELA 14 37 1,992 1,992 1,992 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,244 1,300 780 520
Interest-bearing borrowings LRESSER 908 916 916 -
4,144 4,208 3,688 520

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2021
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(UABTTHIR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)) FTEELEE ()
2020
“ZIZHF
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BEIARME —FREIH ZIR—F
REE RERSHE%H FEER  BLREBF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FATT FHET FAET
Trade and other payables FE AT BR AU EL A FE SR 3,202 3,202 3,202 -
Lease liabilities HE&E 543 555 555 -
Interest-bearing borrowings LRSS ERN 37,060 37,105 37,105 -
40,805 40,862 40,862 -
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIERE
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from loans AEBZANZREFERBEWE
receivable, lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. T HEEERMEER LT
Borrowings issued at fixed rate and variable rates expose the EBRLAERENNEAZATE
Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate MERBRReREMNERA R -
risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by EBEGENAER M EEGHT
management is set out below. Whe
Bt EERFRAR B —

E252021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr G MBS IR R MY 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 MFEEGEEEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TE (@)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIEREE (&)
() Interest rate profile () FIFEHS
The following table details the interest rate profile of TEREMN RS AR AER G
the Group's interest-earning loans and interest-bearing EEREWEGERZFEA
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Bo
2021 2020
ZZZ-&§ “ECTE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
GRS BRI
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): EEER/ () FE
Interest-bearing borrowings Mt S AR 10.0% (908)  NAFRER -
Loans receivable FEWER N/A RiEF - 10.0%-58.9% 76,610
Lease liabilities HEaR 5.0% (1,244) 5.4% (543)
(2,152) 76,067
Variable rate borrowings ZEER
Interest-bearing borrowings LapSYiEE N/A RiEH - 3.8%-6.0% (37,060)
Net exposure RIEEE (2,152) 39,007
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SRETHT

— o 152

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have no significant
impact on the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses for both the years.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 UHEAREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (d) EiERpE
The Group's business activities and its assets and liabilities were AERXBETHREEEHAAEBN
denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management considers the BTk AREBIE BEEBRA/R
Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as most ERTEAHEARINERR  BA
sales, income, purchases and expenses are denominated in the AEBRHEE WA BEKRAZHNU
functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The HEMEB 2 EEBE K&
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. & B i m AN E SRR - AT 0 B
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure EBEGERIIERBRENEREER
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure ZREIREARIMNEE o

should the need arise.

(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) =M TR
2021 2020
—E-—& Y-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost FREIER RS IR SRIE E 12,644 93,496
Financial liabilities ERARE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost FRMER ARz SR B E 4,144 40,805
(f)  Fair value measurement () A FlE:FrE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments REBBM AR EHNETEZE
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from MTAZEREERENRZZEZ—F
their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. R_E_EF+"R=+—HZA
FETEEAER
HigHEERERAR R
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(UABTTHIR)
27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXMERRSRER
AND BALANCES
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEANSHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEEFTEEEASHNEIEN
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as SFTIN 52 2 B AN A Bl E ERUIE K MY
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees as HFREZ BN ETREHMES
disclosed in note 9, is as follows: ZRIESEIBTE
2021 2020
—E_—5F =SS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term employee benefits RHREE T 3,610 5,482
Post-employment benefits BB ET 97 110
3,707 5,592
(b) Material related party transactions (b) EXMESRXS
Except as disclosed in the note 29(d), the Group has not entered BEZZT GFRIZIEF+CZ
into any material related party transactions during the years B=+—HILEFE  BRW29(d)PF
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. WEN REEWETULERNEKR
REARG
(c) Balances with related parties (c) HFjER B Z4EE
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s HRE A BRMZERNARB 2
statement of financial position (note 30(a)). Bk RIEEE (MIEE30@)) ©
28 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 28 HREHARSFIA
Save as disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements BREGEMBRERNF IR AR TR EEM
for the changes of the Company’s principal place of business and SR FEREMIOPAWEEI R
elsewhere in the annual report, the Group does not have any other EETENRSHBEEEAEMERS
significant events after the end of the reporting period. IHo
= i AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2021
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29 MfBATE
(a) R-EFE-_—FR_-_FE_FF
+ZBA=+—HZFEWHE
VAY-TF:3)-
TRERAWAEELE BESR
EEETIEFECNBATZH
B BB AN HERHD ZIER

29 SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2021 and 2020

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated. BEER
Country of incorporation  Particulars of issued Proportion of effective Proportion of effective Principal
Name of company and operation and paid up capital ownership interest ownership interest activity
Bl BE 2503 BREAR ERERE
R8T BEFEER HRBHHTE LA Rt EEE
2021 2020
ZEo-f Z3I%E
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B f3 =t i
Aurum Pacific Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - - - 100%  Provision of administrative
(note (i) services
REERERAH () BE 1Rk% (1871) RATEAR
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Provision of software platform
(HK$7,200,000)
EERRARAT &% 363,636/ %17 RtgHETE
(7,200,0003%70)
AP Finance (note (ii)) Hong Kong 1 share (HK§$1) - 100% - 100%  Provision of money lending
business up to 2 June 2021
SRR (W) 2 1RkH (18T RUENEEH BE2 -
£/AZA)
First Surplus Investment Ltd. BVI 10 shares of US$1 each - 60% - 60%  Investment holding
First Surplus Investment Ltd. HBRYHE 10RERAEE REER
1ETHIRI
Mooff Games Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision of
(HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and
related services
Mooff Games Limited &% 10,0008 813 RERRUBHBERRS
(10,0007%7T) ERERERH
Side Quest Limited Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and
related services
Side Quest Limited B 3,020,008 813 RERRHBHBERRS
(4,510,0017%71) ERERERH

BRTERERERAR
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29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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29 MIERE (8

Notes:

(i) Disposed during the year ended 31 December 2021 (see note 29(b)).

(ii) Discontinued operation as a result of the Group’s decision in
September 2021 (see note 7).

(iii) Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

s -

(ii)

(ifi)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at (a) W-E-—FR_-_E_ZFF
31 December 2021 and 2020 (Continued) +tZBA=+—HZZTEWE
R EJFFIE ()
Country of incorporation  Particulars of issued Proportion of effective Proportion of effective Principal
Name of company and operation and paid up capital ownership interest ownership interest activity
B ATY BTk BRERE BRESE
ATAT BEFEER BRERHE Rt Rt TBEH
2021 2020
EC-f ZFIEE
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B f3 B iz
Smart City Technology Limited Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000) and applications
ERETRRERAT &% 12,0008 813 REFREARER
(1,010,000%70)
Top Banana Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
and related services
BEARAR B8 1R (17%7) REF BB RBMERS
Lasting Surplus Investment HK Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - - - 60%  Tailor made IT solutions
(note (1)) (HK$10,000)
RRERERAT (M) B8 10,0008 8% EREAREAR
(10,000%7%)
ENZEREBRAT (note (i) PRC RMB3,600,000 - 60% - 60%  Development of mobile games
and related services
EMNZERRBRAF (HKi) HE AE3,600,0007 REFRBRIRARRS

REE_Z-—F+°"HA=+—H
IFFEEHE (BHEE29(0)) ©

ARAEER S —F AR
E B IEEEER (RMEE7)

REREZREMAIINEEED
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tr e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHIR)

29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2021

On 25 October 2021, the Group disposed of several subsidiaries
with minimal or no revenue contribution to the Group in the
past years for the purpose of the simplification of the Group's
structure. All the obligations and liabilities owning or incurred by
these subsidiaries have been disposed to an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”) for a total cash consideration of HK$1.

29 MBATE ()

(b)) HR-E-—FHENBLE
RZIEZ—F+AZ+AHH &&E
EREEFEHEARERFRLE
MW EBETHBAS > U
{EREENRIB - ZEMBRABX
NREEZRMBEETREEHER
EF—2BIE=s (Br) Re

REAIBIT
The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries disposed at the REMHBPHEZZSEWBARZ
completion date comprised of: BEEREGEEE !
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 11
Trade and other payables [ 1 AR SR EL A FE AT 3R (2,152)
Current tax payable FE(IBNERFR I (20)
Amounts due to the Group FEGAEERRIE (39,322)
Net liabilities disposed of BHESERE (41,483)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENRBARZIE
Cash consideration REREB _*
Assignment of amounts from the P e A EEERIEEETE S
Group to the Purchaser (39,322)
Net liabilities disposed of BHEaERE 41,483
2,161
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries  HE&MBATFRESRE RN PEE
Cash consideration received BWIRERE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERERIREEEY (11)

w Below HK$1,000.

* {£5%1,00058 7T

B EERERAR
E252021
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29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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(9]

Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020

On 25 November 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interests in Create Winner Investments Limited (“Create
Winner”) and Easy Winner Investments Limited (”Easy
Winner”) to independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) and
the outstanding balances of HK$484,000 and HK$1,005,000
owed by Create Winner and Easy Winner to the Group for total
considerations of HK$484,000 and HK$1,005,000 respectively.

On 29 December 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interests in Creative Good Investments Limited and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Bright Energy Investments Joint Stock
Company, (together with “CG Group”). All the obligations and
liabilities owning or incurred by these subsidiaries have been
disposed to an independent third party for cash consideration of
HK$1.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

29 MIERE (8

(©

R CE_EFHEWB LA
RIZEZEF+—AZ+HH =K
SERBUE=S (BEH) HER
BINKRERBRAR (TAIE)) &2
BrhEARAA (MBE)) 228
RERAIY MBS XN AERZ R
{B3245#7484,0008 7T 521,005,000
BT BAE DR 7R484,0008 T K
1,005,000 7T ©

RZIEZZF+-AZ+NAB8">
FEBHERRAKEBRLA
KREZEWE A EBright Energy
Investments Joint Stock Company (478
[CGEH)) 22 BRIE - ZENWE
RARNREEZFBEEEREE
HEHEFT—RBUE=F R:
REAHIBT
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29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020 (Continued)

29

B2 E (8)

0 R-FE_FFHEWBLRE

(#)
The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries disposed at the REAHBEHEZZEWB AR Z
completion dates comprised of: BERBESRE:
Create Easy
Winner Winner CG Group Total
IS 12y CGEMH “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Right-of-use assets FHAREE 241 1,053 - 1,294
Prepayment iEINE 7 6 - 13
Other receivables HEWR - - 9 9
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - - 2 2
Other payables HANFERTR (12) (34) (12) (58)
Lease liabilities HEaE (472) 971) - (1,443)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of ~BHE& (B1F) /EEZFE (236) 54 (1) (183)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWBARZ WG,
subsidiaries, net (&518) 238
Cash consideration RERE 484 1,005 —* 1,489
Assignment of amounts from the & FEU A £ B R IEHEE
Group to the Purchasers TER (484) (1,005) - (1,489)
Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of BHEEE/ (BE) FE 236 (54) 1 183
Cumulative exchange gain REERBARE
reclassified from equity to HEREMDEE
profit or loss upon disposal of B RETMEW =
subsidiaries - - 2 2
236 (54) 3 185
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from HEKMBATFRERE
disposal of subsidiaries WA Chd) 258
Cash consideration received BUERENE 484 1,005 —* 1,489
Cash and cash equivalents disposed B HEIRERIREZEY - - ) )
484 1,005 @) 1,487

& Below HK$1,000.

* & 721,000 7T ©

BATEERERAR
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29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Acquisition of a non-controlling interest

29 MIERE (8
(d) UPEIEIERGIE

On 5 May 2020, the Group acquired an additional 20% of RIZEZZEFRARH AEEMA
the issued shares of a 80% owned subsidiary, Global Ocean Rk sa U BB HE B 80 % 1 HI I B A
International Holdings Limited (“Global Ocean”) for a cash B EBBERZERERAR (NEEI)
consideration of HK$1 from Zheng Yonggiang. KEIN20% B ETRM  RERER
EvIv
Zheng Yonggiang was the non-executive director of the Group BEE_Z_—F—HA—H > WKkRA
up to 1 January 2021 and, therefore, was considered as a related RAEAEBRFNTES HALL - BEH
party to the Group up to his resignation. The acquisition of 20% B EWRAAERZREAL.
equity interests from Zheng Yonggiang constituted a related M KR U EB20% I EW 1R A —18
party transaction. The carrying amount of the non-controlling EALRZ -RUWER EEE
interests in Global Ocean as at the date of acquisition was a PERG e 2 BREIE A 75 F316,00078
deficit of HK$316,000. As a result, the Group recognised an Too AL AEE R IEIER M I
increase in a non-controlling interest of HK$316,000 and a H0316,00078 7T K 2 A B A A FE(h
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of R R /316,00078 7T ©
HK$316,000.
The effects of changes in ownership interest in Global Ocean BB A RS 2 L E2HARM
was summarised as follows: :

HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount of a non-controlling BUNEIEERER 2 REE
interest acquired (316)
Consideration paid to a non-controlling interest S FIEERER AE —*
Excess of consideration paid PR HMERPES 2
recognised in other reserve within equity BEREBEED (316)

* Below HK$1,000.
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29 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

29

(e) Information of material non-controlling interest

(IINCIII)

The following table lists out the information relating to First

Surplus Investment Ltd. and its subsidiaries which has material

NCI. The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Bt B~ 3] (48)
(e)
1) B

BEAFZEREZ (THFERE

TRV EREEBEAIEERE
T ZFirst Surplus Investment Ltd. 5z H
M8 AT 2 Bk o T 7B F & KR
EENATIMHERI 2 S5

2021 2020

—E—F —ETIEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

NCI percentage JEER T B DL 40% 40%
Non-current assets IERENEE = 4,046
Current assets TENE E 2,160 24,302
Current liabilities mEaE (13,394) (27,996)
Non-current liabilities EREBAR = -
Net (liabilities)/assets (B8R BEZFE (11,234) 352
Carrying amount of NC| R G REE (4,493) 141
Revenue W e 45 327
Loss for the year FEEBIE (11,623) (40,825)
Total comprehensive expense BT AE%E (11,586) (40,915)
Loss allocated to NCI DECEIFEREREE (4,649) (16,330)
Dividends paid to NC| IR EFRIERERR S - -

Cash flows generated from KERHFAEZRENE SRR

operating activities, net 15,176 3,103
Cash flows used in investing activities, net IR E EFEFTAZ RS R E/$%E (920) (2,763)
Cash flows used in financing activities, net BB ZBFTE 2 IRERE/FRE (15,030) (4,175)

B EERERAR
E252021
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30 xATZMBEK
(a) HERRZE

30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

———* 162

2021 2020
% TEITE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE - 8
- 8
Current assets RHEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e B B A B R IB 24,392 96,812
Deposits, prepayments and other & AR R EMERR
receivables 5 33
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 241 8
24,638 96,853
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{SHS B A B FUE 20,835 20,468
Interest-bearing borrowings {ORSSIEEN 908 -
Other payables and accrued charges HAMFE N U BT & A 1,403 884
23,146 21,352
Net current assets RHEESRE 1,492 75,501
NET ASSETS HEFE 1,492 75,509
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital [N 50,906 50,906
Reserves G (49,414) 24,603
TOTAL EQUITY R AR 1,492 75,509

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

30 AREZMBER (@)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual (b)) ZAREFRNELXREEEL
components of capital and reserves during the HRESRZEBFEEUT -
year:

Fair value
reserve
Share Share Capital Capital (non-  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus recycling) losses Total
. o ) LTEEE i
i RiEE EXfifE EFRE  (FUEs) 2iEE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TERL TEn TEL TEn TEn
(note 25(b)i)
(Bz£2500)))
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%%-F-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (348) (284,611) 151,307
Loss for the year EEFR - B - - - (75,646) (75,646)
Loss on disposal of equity investments HERNOEEZ RAREZBE
measured at FVOC - - - - - (152) (152)
Total comprehensive expense for the year EERARYER - - - - - (75,798) (75,798)
Transfer of fair value reserve (non-recycling) RHERAVOCEEZ
upon the disposal of equity investments RAREHBRATEMER
measured at FVOCI (RTEE) - - - - 348 (348) -
At 31 December 2020 RZEZE%+ZF=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 - (360,757) 75,509
At 1 January 2021 WoE--£-B- 50906 381,490 2,61 1,609 - (360,757) 75,509
Loss and total comprehensive expense FERBRZERTAR
for the year - - - - - (74,017) (74,017)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%+ZB=+-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 - (434,774) 1492
Contingent liabilities (c) EAE[E

(©

At 31 December 2021, the Company has no contingent
liabilities.

At 31 December 2020, the Company had issued a corporate
guarantee in respect of a loan made by a bank to a subsidiary
(see note 20).

The fair value of these guarantees was not provided for in
these consolidated financial statements as the directors of the
Company considered the amount involved to be insignificant.

RN E_—F+_BA=+—H'=&
NELELREE

N_E_FEF+__/A=+—H =&
NEFIRTRARNBATREZER
REATER (RMEE20) ©

IEREMBRRLERHZSE
RZRAFE AAERDEERA
P2 &ERAREA

BEPEERERAT 1B
E252021
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in note 2.
The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairment loss on intangible assets
The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, the expected cash flows generated by the intangible
assets are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of future software
revenue and the amount of service costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of software revenue and the amount of service costs,
and discount rate.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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31 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

()

(9]

(d)

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are set out in note 13.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses. As these
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if and only if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered; conversely, the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets are disclosed in note 22(b).

Impairment allowances on financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for financial assets at
amortised cost by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of
significant estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the end
of the reporting period. Where the estimation is different from
the previous estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.

31

et fhst KA (&)

()

(©

(d)

BEBELA
EEBESTRER ARENK
BEZHESELBUZEREBERF
Bttt EERBER > EEAM
SHEMREREEEBUZARKIE
ERERBEMIRE  UEHHERE
REBEZ StEFFEHINME3.

TEIERBEER RS AMERGRE
FERD - A IEIE IR IR E E(ETEFIAE
ARRERREN UERARBAR
HEMNZIBRTHER BEEEAM
ST AR R BRI Z P AE M AF
FER o fiF 52 12 SRR FEER TR i 7 AE
TIEEIRBEER T I(E - Bl EE
[ F5 B HE 1T 5T A > B SR ER SME ST
MEBE ; Rz BERBESERE
BEFLUNE LB R ER BHE
SR B LURI0ER ) S 2 AR AEAE
MIBEBEZFEAR - BRIEER
HEEZHERREEFFRER
MFEE22(b) ©

BEBEREAEZZHEE
ZERE
FEREBTEBEREEBRE B
REH At EZ SRMBEMLFTE
BREFHE LEBEEAERMGHK
HEf-EHEEERRAERZE
FEEBRER TREEHAZ
HERRURMIR S HRBREE
RRRIEA Z FHEEHBEME
fis {5 A RIS AT b 51 BRAZE 4R
R ERBIENAGFECTMEE
ZIREE > M7 2t E B HIE
ZR(ERE
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
HKFRS 17
year ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in

Insurance Contracts”, which are not yet effective for the

these consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

COVID-19 — Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021"

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle?

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Annual Improvements

Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 12

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 H#E-ZT”_—F+-A
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED =+—HLFEBRMHEH
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR REMZIEET ~ AR R 52 18
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED) Z2BERE @)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REBFTETHZELERNVIRERIRRE
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial FEHEEZEE-FEFAL  AEEE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them will MERMNZFE] - MERREEFTTE
not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial HAEEGEUBREREEEATE-
statements.

33 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 33 LEREF
Certain comparative figures, including figures in the consolidated HRFERERIEREER BEMEIA
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit TR T (BEFeEaRMFEGER
or loss and other comprehensive income have been re-presented as REMEENGERZHF) -BRIEKEE
a result of the discontinued operation during the year. Details of the B2 IR B MIET -

discontinued operation is disclosed in note 7.

B EERERAR 167 ———
E252021



— 168

FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBHE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEZI-HF Z2ITHF Z—hHFE Z2-N\F Z—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E 4
Revenue from continuing and FERDRIEEE
discontinued operations 2 W 21,031 31,420 40,073 53,968 64,464
Loss before taxation PRI ATES 1B (86,771) (93,155) (69,601) (43,534) (43,846)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigi () /g% (1,215) 5,158 2,118 1,462 (1,889)
Loss for the year FEBE (87,986) (87,997) (67,483) (42,072) (45,735)
Attributable to: MFALRERS:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIEZ= DN (83,337) (71,611) (61,470) (38,967) (48,823)
Non-controlling interests FEPER R (4,649) (16,386) (6,013) (3,105) 3,088
(87,986) (87,997) (67,483) (42,072) (45,735)
Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B (6.55) (5.63) (4.83) (3.21) (4.50)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Total assets BEERE 35,678 159,519 260,698 324,784 405,730
Total liabilities BEEE (8,796) (44,688) (57,979) (54,208) (123,350)
26,882 114,831 202,719 270,576 282,380
Total equity attributable to KABVER AR
owners of the Company R 4EEE 31,375 114,690 186,544 248,383 257,107
Non-controlling interests FEER R (4,493) 141 16,175 22,193 25,273
26,882 114,831 202,719 270,576 282,380

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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